Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 0%"“:
Bridgend County Borough Council

Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont, CF31 4WB / Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend, CF31 4WB RIDGEND

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief

Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich Executive’s Directorate
dewis iaith. Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 /
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 643147 [ 643694
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. Gofynnwch am / Ask for: Michael Pitman

Ein cyf/ Our ref:
Eich cyf/ Your ref:

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 21 Chwefror 2020

Annwyl Cynghorydd,

PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI

Cynhelir Cyfarfod Pwyllgor Datblygiad a Rheoli yn Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont
ar Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd lau, 27 Chwefror 2020 am 14:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau /
Swyddogion yn unol & darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. Dylai aelodau cael rolau deuol o'r fath ddatgan buddiant personol
mewn perthynas a'u haelodaeth o Gyngor Tref / Cymuned fath a rhagfarnllyd os ydynt wedi
cymryd rhan yn yr ystyriaeth o eitem ar y Cyngor Tref / Cymuned a geir yn Adroddiadau y
Swyddog isod.

3. Ymweliadau Safle
| gadarnhau dyddiad dydd Mercher 08/04/2020 ar gyfer archwiliadau safle arfaethedig sy'n
codi yn y cyfarfod, neu nodi cyn cyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor gan y Cadeirydd.

4. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion 3-10
| dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 16/01/2020

5. Siaradwyr Cyhoeddus
| gynghori aelodau enwau'r siaradwyr cyhoeddus rhestredig i siarad yn y cyfarfod heddiw
(os o gwbl).

6. Taflen Gwelliant 11-14

Bod y Cadeirydd yn derbyn taflen gwelliant pwyllgor rheoli datblygu fel eitem frys yn unol &
rhan 4 (paragraff 4) Rheolau Gweithdrefn y Cyngor, er mwyn caniatau i'r Pwyllgor ystyried
addasiadau angenrheidiol i adroddiad y Pwyllgor, felly ynghylch hwyr yn ystyried sylwadau a
diwygiadau sy'n ei gwneud yn ofynnol i gael eu lletya.


mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/

7. Canllawiau Pwyllgor Datblygiad a Rheoli

8. P/19/911/RLX - Tir Ger Lon Rhos, Porthcawl 15-34
9. P/19/810/FUL - Datblygiad Tai Wrth Ffordd Pob Saint, Penyfai 35-44
10.  P/19/895/RLX - Fferm Cefnfor, Ger Stryd Dafydd, Blaengarw 45 - 54
11.  Apeliadau 55 - 66
12.  Rhestr Hyfforddiant 67 - 68

13. Materion Brys
| ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn

y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol & Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Prif Swyddog — Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
JPD Blundell MJ Kearn RME Stirman
NA Burnett DRW Lewis G Thomas
RJ Collins JE Lewis MC Voisey
SK Dendy DG Owen KJ Watts

DK Edwards JC Radcliffe CA Webster
RM Granville JC Spanswick AJ Williams



Agenda Item 4

PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI - DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI A GYNHALIWYD YN
SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR
OGWR CF31 4WB DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020, AM 14:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd G Thomas — Cadeirydd

JPD Blundell DK Edwards RM Granville MJ Kearn
DRW Lewis JC Radcliffe JC Spanswick RME Stirman
MC Voisey CA Webster AJ Williams

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

NA Burnett, RJ Collins, JE Lewis a/ac KJ Watts

Swyddogion:

Rhodri Davies Rheolwr Datblygu a Rheoli Adeiladu

Gareth Denning Policy Team Leader

Craig Flower Arweinydd Tim Cymorth Thechnegol

Claire Hamm Arweinydd Tim Cadwraeth a Dilynio

Rod Jones Uwch Cyfreithiwr

Richard Matthams Arweinydd Tim Cynllunio Datblygiadau
Robert Morgan Uwch Swyddog Rheoli Datblygu Trafnidiaeth
Jonathan Parsons Rheolwr Gnwp Datblygu

Andrew Rees Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Kevin Stephens Cynorthwy-ydd Gwasanaethau Democataidd
Leigh Tuck Swyddog Rheoli Datblygu Trafnidiaeth

343. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Gwnaed y datganiadau o fuddiant canlynol:

Datganodd y Cynghorydd C Spanswick fuddiant personol yn eitem 8 yr agenda —
P/19/531/FUL fel aelod o Gyngor Cymuned Bracla ond nid yw'n cymryd rhan wrth
ystyried ceisiadau cynllunio.

344. YMWELIADAU SAFLE

PENDERFYNWYD: Cytuno ar ddydd Mercher 26 Chwefror 2020 fel y dyddiad ar gyfer
yr archwiliadau safle arfaethedig a drafodwyd yn y cyfarfod, neu a
adnabuwyd cyn cyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor gan y Cadeirydd.

345. DERBYNY COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygiadau a
gynhaliwyd ar 5 Rhagfyr 2019 fel rhai cywir.

346. SIARADWYR CYHOEDDUS

Nid oedd unrhyw siaradwyr cyhoeddus.

347. TAFLEN DDIWYGIO

Page 3



PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI - DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020

348.

349.

350.

Page 4

PENDERFYNWYD: Y byddai'r Cadeirydd yn derbyn Taflen Ddiwygio'r Pwyligor Rheoli
Datblygiadau fel eitem frys, yn unol & Rhan 4 (paragraff 4) o
Reolau Gweithdrefnol y Cyngor, er mwyn caniatau i'r Pwyllgor
ystyried addasiadau angenrheidiol i adroddiad y Pwyllgor er mwyn
cymryd i ystyriaeth sylwadau a diwygiadau hwyr y mae angen eu
cynnwys.

CANLLAWIAU'R PWYLLGOR RHEOLI DATBLYGIADAU

PENDERFYNWYD: Nodi'r crynodeb o Ganllawiau'r Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygiadau a
nodwyd yn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau.

P/19/531/FUL - TY GWYN, BRIARY WAY, BRACLA, CF31 2PT

PENDERFYNWYD: (1) Caniatau'r cais cynllunio canlynol, yn unol &'r Amodau
sydd wedi eu cynnwys yn adroddiad y Rheolwr Grivp,
Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu.

Cynnig

Cadw estyniad dau lawr gydag ychwanegiad dormer, codi estyniad un llawr a gwaith
mewnol cysylltiedig.

(2) Y byddai Rheolwr Grivp Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu
yn ysgrifennu at Lywodraeth Cymru yn gofyn am newid mewn
deddfwriaeth gynllunio mewn perthynas a darparu lle amwynder
mewn cartrefi gofal.

APELIADAU

PENDERFYNWYD: (1) Nodi'r Apeliadau sydd wedi eu derbyn ers cyfarfod olaf y
Pwyllgor, fel yr amlinellir yn adroddiad y Rheolwr Grp,
Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu.

Rhif y Cod: Testun yr Apél:

A/19/3240278 (1881)  Cadw cynhwysydd dur (a ddefnyddiwyd ar gyfer busnes danfon
bwyd) am gyfnod dros dro West Winds, Priory Oak, Pen-y-bont
ar Ogwr

A/19/3241246 (1882)  Tir ar gyfer uned i'w osod ar gyfer gwyliau hunangynhwysol
pren gyferbyn a Fferm Penylan, Abercynffig

Heb ddechrau gan yr ~ Eiddo mewn cyflwr adfeiliedig 2 Heol Ewenni
Arolygiaeth Gynllunio  Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr

(1883)

(2) Y nodir bod yr Arolygydd a benodwyd gan Weinidogion Cymru i
benderfynu'r apél ganlynol wedi ei ddiswyddo ac mae'r
hysbysiad gorfodi'n cael ei gadarnhau

Rhif y Cod Testun yr Apél

A/19/3235650 (1868) Gwaith anawdurdodedig 4 Hendre Avenue, Cwm Ogwr

(3) Y nodir bod yr Arolygydd a benodwyd gan Weinidogion Cymru i
benderfynu'r apél ganlynol wedi ei Ddiswyddo:-



PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI - DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020

351.

Page 5

Rhif y Cod Testun yr Apél

A/19/3237153 (1872) Amlinelliad o gais am hyd at 24 o anheddau a thir gweithfeydd
cysylltiedig oddi ar Heol Tondu, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr

CYFARWYDDYD ERTHYGL 4 A GYNIGIWYD AR GYFER ARDAL GADWRAETH
NANT-Y-MOEL (DYNODWYD 10 AWST 1973)

Adroddodd Arweinydd y Tim Cadwraeth a Dylunio, Prosiectau Adfywio ac Amgylchedd
Adeiledig bod Cyfarwyddyd Erthygl 4 (2) Brys wedi ei wneud mewn perthynas ag Ardal
Gadwraeth Nant-y-moel i fynd i'r afael & bygythiad wrth law i gymeriad ac edrychiad yr
Ardal Gadwraeth ac adnabod y rheolyddion ychwanegol uniongyrchol dros ddatblygiad a
ganiateir o fewn yr Ardal Gadwraeth drwy gyflwyno Cyfarwyddyd Erthygl 4(2) ac wedi
amlinellu camau nesaf y broses.

Rhoddodd wybod i'r pwyllgor bod swyddogion wedi cael gwybod am y gwaith
anawdurdodedig mewn perthynas & dymchwel wal ffiniol blaen eiddo heb ei restru o
fewn Ardal gadwraeth Nant-y-moel sydd nawr yn destun cais ar gyfer caniatad Cynllunio
a Chaniatad Ardal Gadwraeth. Dywedodd er bod y gwaith hwn yn cael ei ystyried yn
anawdurdodedig gan fod y wal ffiniol sy'n wynebu'r briffordd yn fwy na 1m o uchder, bod
llawer o'r waliau ffiniol cerrig presennol sy'n cyfrannu at gymeriad yr ardal yn is na metr
mewn uchder, a bod modd ystyried eu haddasu neu eu dymchwel fel datblygiad a
ganiateir. Gall newidiadau cynyddol fel y rhain gael effaith negyddol ar gymeriad yr
ardal ac felly, heb gyflwyno rheolyddion, mae perygl gwirioneddol y gallai'r ardal gael ei
heffeithio'n sylweddol o safbwynt materol, y gellid colli gwerth y dreftadaeth adeiledig am
byth.

Adroddodd Arweinydd y Tim Cadwraeth a Dylunio, Prosiectau Adfywio ac Amgylchedd
Adeiledig bod Cyfarwyddyd Erthygl 4(2) wedi ei wneud yn dilyn cael gwybod am y
gwaith anawdurdodedig, sef dymchwel y rhan o'r wal ffiniol sy'n wynebu'r briffordd a
thriniaeth ffiniol o achos hynny, sydd wedi cael effaith sylweddol ar gymeriad ac
edrychiad yr ardal sy'n gosod sail anffodus i berchnogion adeiladau eraill ei ddilyn.
Dywedodd, oherwydd yr effaith sylweddol y mae triniaethau ffiniol yn eu cael ar
gymeriad arbennig yr ardal, ei bod yn hanfodol bod y Cyfarwyddyd yn cael ei wneud cyn
gynted & phosibl i gynnwys codi neu ddymchwel giét, ffens, wal neu ffordd arall o amgau
o fewn y cwrtil ty annedd sy'n wynebu priffordd neu fan agored. Oherwydd y bygythiad
wrth law i gymeriad yr ardal, gwnaed Cyfarwyddyd Erthygl 4 (2) a chyhoeddwyd
Hysbysiad yn y papur newydd lleol a chyflwynwyd Hysbysiad i berchenogion a
meddianwyr y mae'r Cyfarwyddyd yn ymdrin & hwy. Daeth y Cyfarwyddyd i effaith yn
syth wedi cyflwyno a chyhoeddi'r Hysbysiad a chafodd perchnogion/meddianwyr y cyfle i
wneud cynrychioliadau cyn i Aelodau dderbyn adroddiad pellach cyn cadarnhau'r
Cyfarwyddyd. Bydd y Cyfarwyddyd yn terfynu ar 6l chwe mis oni bai ei fod wedi ei
gadarnhau gan Aelodau. Mae pamffled drafft wedi ei baratoi a'i anfon i gynorthwyo
perchnogion a meddianwyr wrth ddeall goblygiad Cyfarwyddyd Erthygl 4.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Pwyligor:

1. Wedi nodi bod Cyfarwyddyd wedi ei wneud dan Erthygl 4(2) Gorchymyn
(Datblygiad a Ganiateir Cyffredinol) Cynlluniau Tref a Gwlad 1995 i ddileu
hawliau datblygiadau a ganiateir perchnogion a phreswylwyr tai annedd o fewn
Ardal Gadwraeth Nant-y-moel, dan y telerau a nodwyd yn Atodiad 2;

2. Yn cytuno bod Aelodau yn derbyn adroddiad pellach a fydd yn cyflwyno unrhyw
sylwadau a dderbynnir o ganlyniad i wasanaethu Cyfarwyddyd Erthygl 4(2).



PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI - DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020

352.

353.

Page 6

ADRODDIAD YMGYNGHORI STRATEGAETH A FFAFRIR CYNLLUN DATBLYGU
LLEOL

Adroddodd y Rheolwr Cynllunio Datblygiad ar Adroddiad Ymgynghori Strategaeth a
Ffafrir y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (LDP) i'w gyflwyno i'r Cyngor er mwyn cael ystyriaeth a
nawdd.

Adroddodd bod Rheoliad 15 o Reoliadau'r LDP yn gofyn i'r Cyngor gyhoeddi ei gynigion
cyn adneuo (Strategaeth a Ffafrir) ar gyfer archwiliad ac ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus cyn
pennu cynnwys ei LDP ar gyfer Adneuo. Nododd bod cyfnod ymgynghori statudol y
Strategaeth a Ffafrir wedi ei gynnal ar 30 Medi 2019 i 8 Tachwedd 2019 a derbyniwyd
cyfanswm o 70 o sylwadau ffurfiol. Wrth baratoi ar gyfer Cam Adneuo'r LDP, mae'n
rhaid i'r Cyngor wneud drafft o Adroddiad Ymgynghori i'w gyhoeddi cyn gynted ag y bo'n
ymarferol resymol wedi ymgynghoriad cyn adneuo dan Reoliad 16A yr LDP. Rhoddodd
wybod i'r Cyngor bod Adroddiad Ymgynghori wedi ei baratoi, yn amlinellu sut mae'r
Cyngor wedi ymdrin & chyfranogiad ac ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ar y Strategaeth a
Ffafrir ei hun. Dywedodd bod yr Adroddiad wedi nodi'r camau a gymerwyd er mwyn rhoi
cyhoeddusrwydd i baratoadau'r cynllun, yn unol &'r Cynllun Cynnwys Cymunedau (CIS),
cyn amlinellu'r cyrff penodol yr ymgysylltwyd & nhw, crynhoi'r prif faterion a godwyd a
nodi sut yr ymdriniwyd &'r atebion, neu sut fyddent yn cael eu hymdrin & nhw. Cynigodd
yr Adroddiad fanylder sylweddol ynghylch sut fydd y cyfnod allweddol o ymgynghori'n
dylanwadu ar ddatblygiad Adneuo'r LDP.

Adroddodd y Rheolwr Cynllunio Datblygiad bod nifer o ddulliau ymgynghori wedi eu
defnyddio er mwyn sicrhau ymgynghoriad a chyfranogiad effeithiol ac effeithlon, yn unol
a'r CIS. Nododd nad oedd bwriad i'r Adroddiad Ymgynghori fod yn adroddiad
cynhwysfawr ar bob sylwad a dderbyniwyd, ond yn hytrach yn grynodeb o faterion
allweddol a godwyd mewn ymateb i gwestiynau penodol ar y ffurflen ymgynghori.
Roedd nifer sylweddol o gyfranogiadau hefyd yn canolbwyntio ar safle penodol, er nad
oedd yr Adroddiad yn ceisio gwerthuso haeddiannau cynhwysfawr safleoedd a oedd
wedi eu cynnig. Noddodd y bydd yr holl safleoedd a gynigiwyd yn cael eu gwerthuso fel
rhan o Fethodoleg Asesu Safleoedd a Gynigiwyd, sydd ar wahan i'r Ymgynghoriad
Strategaeth a Ffafrir. Rhoddodd wybod i'r Cyngor bod yr Adroddiad Ymgynghori wedi ei
strwythuro o amgylch bob cwestiwn ymgynghori, yn nodi prif bwyntiau cyfatebol a
dderbyniwyd ac yn manylu ar ymatebion dilynol y Cyngor. Mae'r Adroddiad Ymgynghori
yn cynnig trosolwg thematig manwl o'r prif sylwadau a gyflwynwyd gan gynrychiolwyr.

PENDERFYNWYD: Y nododd y Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygiad gynnwys Adroddiad yr
Ymgynghoriad Cyhoeddus a bydd Adroddiad yr Ymgynghoriad yn
cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cyngor ar gfyer ystyriaeth a nawdd ar 22
lonawr 2020.

CANLLAWIAU CYNLLUNIO ATODOL DRAFFT - DATBLYGIAD TAI NEWYDD A
CHYFLEUSTERAU HAMDDEN AWYR AGORED

Ceisiodd Arweinydd Tim Cynllunio Datblygiad gymeradwyaeth i gynghori ar ddogfen
drafft o Ganllawiau Cynllunio Atodol (SPG) Datblygiad Tai Newydd a Chyfleusterau
Hamdden Awyr Agored.

Adroddodd fod y Canllawiau Cynllunio Atodol (SPG) yn egluro'n fanwl dull y Cyngor
ddarparu chwaraeon awyr agored, ardal chwarae i blant, rhandiroedd a mannau agored
cyhoeddus (gan gynnwys mannau gwyrdd naturiol hygyrch) ar gyfer pob datblygiad tai
newydd a sut y caiff COM11 Polisi LDP ei weithredu. Mae'r SPG yn annog cysylltiadau
rhwng darparu ardal agored dan COM11 Polisi a'i gyfraniad i seilwaith gwyrdd ym Mhen-
y-bont ar Ogwr. Wedi iddo gael ei feithrin, bydd yn cael ei ystyried fel ystyriaeth faterol
wrth bennu perthnasedd ceisiadau Cynllunio.



PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI - DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020

354.

Page 7

Adroddodd Arweinydd y Tim Cynllunio Datblygiad bod y Cyngor yn derbyn nifer uchel o
geisiadau bob blwyddyn ar gyfer datblygiadau tai newydd, sy'n creu galw i wella
cyfleusterau hamdden presennol a darparu cyfleusterau hamdden newydd. | fodloni'r
gofyn hwn, mae Polisi COM11 y LDP yn gofyn bod lefel a safon foddhaol o ddarpariaeth
chwaraeon awyr agored, ardal chwarae i blant, rhandiroedd a mannau agored
cyhoeddus (gan gynnwys mannau gwyrdd naturiol hygyrch) ar gyfer pob datblygiad tai
newydd.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Pwyligor:

1. wedi cymeradwyo Canllawiau Cynllunio Atodol Drafft - Datblygiad Tai Newydd a
Chyfleusterau Hamdden Awyr Agored (Atodiad 1) ar sail ymgynghoriad
cyhoeddus dros gyfnod o 6 wythnos;

2. wedirhoi caniatad i Swyddogion ymgymryd &'r ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ac i
adrodd ar ganlyniadau'r ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus mewn cyfarfod Pwyligor
Rheoli Datblygiad.

CANLLAWIAU CYNLLUNIO ATODOL DRAFFT - DATBLYGIAD PRESWYL A
CHYFLEUSTERAU ADDYSGOL

Ceisiodd Arweinydd Tim Cynllunio Datblygiad gymeradwyaeth i gynghori ar ddogfen
drafft o Ganllawiau Cynllunio Atodol (SPG) Datblygiad Preswyl a Chyfleusterau
Addysgol.

Er mwyn rhoi cyfle i blant y Fwrdeistref Sirol allu ffynnu a llwyddo, dywedodd fod
dyletswydd ar y Cyngor i sicrhau bod cyfleusterau addysgol o ansawdd da ar gael a
fyddai'n creu cyfle i ddysgu. Hysbysodd y Pwyligor fod y galw am dai yn y Fwrdeistref
Sirol yn cynyddu, a bod nifer fawr o dai yn cael eu hadeiladu i wasanaethu'r galw hwn,
gan arwain at roi cyfleusterau addysgol presennol dan bwysau cynyddol i ddarparu ar
gyfer y disgyblion ychwanegol sy'n cael eu creu drwy ddatblygu tai. Mae angen i'r
system Gynllunio sicrhau bod y camau angenrheidiol yn cael eu cymryd i osgoi effaith
andwyol ar gyfleusterau a bod darpariaeth ddigonol ar gael i ddiwallu anghenion dysgu
plant a phobl ifanc Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Dywedodd Arweinydd y Tim Cynllunio Datblygiad fod y SPG Addysg presennol (SPG
16) wedi'u mabwysiadu yn 2010 ac er bod y canllawiau sydd wedi eu cynnwys yn y
ddogfen hon wedi bod yn llwyddiannus o ran negodi rhwymedigaethau Cynllunio
ariannol gyda chyfanswm o dros £5 miliwn, mae angen diweddaru'r fformiwlédu cynnyrch
disgyblion a'r canllawiau costau. Bydd yn sicrhau bod lefel y rhwymedigaethau a
negodwyd gyda datblygwyr yn adlewyrchu gwir gostau darparu cyfleusterau addysgol
sy'n cael eu creu yn 0l galw y datblygiad preswyl newydd. Bydd SPG newydd a
diwygiedig yn sicrhau y bydd yr Awdurdod Lleol yn medru parhau i ddarparu ar gyfer
anghenion dysgu plant a phobl ifanc Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. Rhoddodd wybod i'r Pwyllgor
bod y canllaw drafft yn ategu Polisiau COM10 a SP14 Cynllun Datblygiad Lleol Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr (LDP 2006-21) ac yn bwysicach, bydd y SPG yn cynnig canllaw polisi wedi
ei ddiweddaru er mwyn ei gynnwys yn sail tystiolaeth y LDP newydd. Ei ddiben yw
cynnig cyngor i ddatblygwyr ar yr amgylchiadau lle dylai'r Cyngor chwilio am gyfraniadau
tuag at ddarparu cyfleusterau addysgol ar gyfer datblygiadau preswyl newydd.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygiadau:

1. wedi cymeradwy Drafft SPG 16 - Datblygiad Preswyl a Chyfleusterau Addysgol
(Atodiad 1) ar sail ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus dros gyfnod o 6 wythnos;



PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI - DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020

355.

356.

Page 8

2. wedirhoi caniatad i Swyddogion ymgymryd a'r ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ac i
adrodd ar ganlyniadau'r ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus mewn cyfarfod Pwyligor
Rheoli Datblygiad.

CAIS AR GYFER DATBLYGIAD O ARWYDDOCAD CENEDLAETHOL GAN
ENERGION LTD TIR I'R GOGLEDD O FFORDD FELINDRE, PENCOED ADRODDIAD
EFFAITH LLEOL AR RAN YR AWDURDOD CYNLLUNIO LLEOL.

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Datblygu a Rheoli Adeiladau wrth y Pwyllgor am Adroddiad Effaith
Lleol sydd wedi ei baratoi gan yr Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol (LPA) am ddatblygiad nwy
40MW dros dro (25 mlynedd) ar dir sydd i'r gogledd o Ffordd Felindre, Pencoed. Ystyrir
y datblygiad fel Datblygiad o Arwyddocad Cenedlaethol (DNS) a bydd yn cynnwys
gorsaf bwer wrth gefn ar gyfer pan fydd y galw'n uwch na'r capasiti sydd ar gael gan'y
Rhwydwaith.

Adroddodd mai bwriad y broses DNS yw sicrhau bod penderfyniadau amserol yn cael
eu gwneud ynghylch ceisiadau cynllunio sydd ag arwyddocad sylweddol i Gymru
oherwydd eu buddion ac effeithiau posibl. Caiff ceisiadau eu cyflwyno i Arolygaeth
Gynllunio Cymru er mwyn cael eu hystyried gan Arolygydd penodedig. Bydd yr
Arolygydd penodedig yna yn ystyried tystiolaeth o'r cais, yr Awdurdod Cynllunio Lleol ac
ymgynghoreion statudol a phartion eraill sydd & diddordeb. Rhoddodd wybod i'r
Pwyllgor bod y LIR wedi paratoi i roi gwybod i'r Arolygaeth Cynllunio o effeithiau tebygol
y datblygiad a gynigiwyd ar yr ardal. Nododd bod yr adroddiad yn ddogfen ffeithiol ac
wedi ei seilio ar wybodaeth leol a thystiolaeth o faterion lleol ac mae hefyd cyfle i'r LPA
roi sylw ar gais y DNS.

Adroddodd y Rheolwr Datblygu a Rheoli Adeiladu y bod modd gweld y datblygiad a
gynigwyd a bod yr Arolygaeth Gynllunio wedi cyhoeddi'r holl sylwadau a'r LIR ar wefan
Datblygiadau o Arwyddocad Cenedlaethol. Nododd y bydd yr Arolygydd penodedig
nawr yn ystyried y LIR a'r holl sylwadau a dderbyniwyd ac yn penderfynu pa weithdrefn y
bydd yr archwiliad o'r cais yn ei ddilyn erbyn 10 lonawr 2020. Mae gan yr ymgeisydd
hyd nes 10 lonawr 2020 i ofyn am amrywio'r cais ac os yw cais yn cael ei wneud a'i
dderbyn, bydd yr archwiliad yn cael ei ohirio.

PENDERFYNWYD: Y byddai'r Pwyllgor yn nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a'r LIR.

ADRODDIAD DIWEDD BLWYDDYN - PERFFORMIAD CYNLLUNIO 2019

Adroddodd y Rheolwr Rheoli Adeiladu a Datblygu ar ddiweddariad o berfformiad yr
Adran yn ystod blwyddyn calendr 2019 mewn cymhariaeth & 2018 a blynyddoedd
blaenorol. Rhoddodd wybod i'r Pwyllgor bod yr adroddiad diwedd blwyddyn yn cynnig
ffigyrau mwy manylach a diweddarach ar gyfer y gwasanaeth ar faterion fel Adran 106
Cyfranogiadau, Cwynion a Rheoli Adeiladu Nododd bod nifer y ceisiadau Cynllunio
penodedig yn 2019 wedi lleihau 0 920 yn 2018 i 843 yn 2019 a bod nifer y cynlluniau
mawr penodedig wedi lleihau 0 23 i 17 yn ystod yr un cyfnod. Crynhodd rhai o bwyntiau
allweddol y casgliad o ddata ar gyfer yr adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD:

1. Y byddai'r Pwyllgor yn nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad;

2. Y cyflwynir adroddiad i'r Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygiadau ar ddiwedd y flwyddyn
ariannol ar y swm y gwariant yn erbyn Cytundebau S106.



PWYLLGOR DATBLYGIAD A RHEOLI - DYDD IAU, 16 IONAWR 2020

357. COFNOD HYFFORDDIANT

Adroddodd Rheolwr Gnvp Gwasanaethau Cynllunio a Datblygu ar gofnod hyfforddiant
wedi ei ddiweddaru.

PENDERFYNWYD: Body Pwyllgor wedi nodi'r cofnod hyfforddiant wedi ei
ddiweddaru.

358. EITEMAU BRYS

Nid oedd yna unrhyw eitemau brys.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 15:52

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 27 FEBRUARY 2020

AMENDMENT SHEET

Page 11



The Chairperson accepts the amendment sheet in order to allow for Committee to
consider necessary modifications to the Committee report to be made so as to take
account of late representations and corrections and for any necessary revisions to
be accommodated.

ITEM NO. PAGE NO. APPLICATION NO.

5 11 P/19/911/RLX
A Full Committee Site Visit was undertaken on Wednesday 26 February 2020.
The Local Ward Member and the agent for the applicant attended the site visit.

A late representation has been received today from a local resident objecting to the development
on the basis that hedgerows have/will be ripped up, the land has/will be scarified, the log cabins
will be intrusive in the countryside and the extra units will have a detrimental impact on the existing
poor state of the highway.

As the Service Yard has been curtailed slightly, Condition 13 should now read:-

13.  Within six months of the date of this consent, an updated Traffic & Delivery Management
Plan for the site shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
All guest arrivals and departures and servicing and delivery vehicles movements to the site
shall be made in accordance with the agreed Traffic & Delivery Plan once the development
is brought into beneficial use.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

As a result, advisory note g. at the end of the recommendation should be changed to refer to
condition 13 not 10 as follows:

g. The Traffic and Delivery Management Plan required to address Condition 13 will need to
contain sufficient information in respect of the following:-

(1) Guest arrival and departure arrangements (directions to the site and timing of those
movements;

(i) Guest arrival and departures of the adjacent Brodawel Caravan Park;

(i)  Proposed Delivery Schedules;

(iv)  Proposed Delivery Vehicle/Service Vehicles sizes;

v) Supporting swept path diagrams; and

(vi)  The need to review the plan in the event that any of the above arrangements change or at
the request of the Highway Authority.

In addition, the Highway Authority has requested an additional condition requiring details of signs
warning of horse-riding in the highway (as well as the pedestrian warning signs as previously
approved) at the start of Moor Lane off the A4229 and at the junction of Moor Lane near St.
David’'s Well to the east leading back to Nottage and at the other end of Moor Lane adjacent to
Parc Newydd caravan site to the west.

Therefore, an additional condition (25) should be added to the recommendation as follows:
25.  Prior to the beneficial occupation of the holiday chalets, a scheme for the provision of
gateway traffic signs warning of the presence of equestrians sharing the highway at the

junction of Moor Lane with the A4229 and the junction of Moor Lane near St. David’s Well
to the east and at the junction of Moor Lane opposite Parc Newydd Farm Caravan Site to

Page 12



the west, together with any necessary illumination, shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall thereafter be
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the development being
brought into beneficial use and shall thereafter be maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.
Condition 22 of the recommendation is incorrect and should be superseded by this wording:
22.  Site clearance works shall be taken in full accordance with:-
e The details relating to lighting design, method for vegetation clearance, knotweed protocol
as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February, 2019.
e The pollution prevention measures which comprise a 5m wide buffer zone from the SINC
along with a 2m x 1m clay bund as approved under App. No. P/19/307/DOC dated 31st
May, 2019.
Reason: In the interests of biodiversity.
In addition, the following original condition should be included under the recommendation:
26.  All site clearance works shall be undertaken in accordance with the methods and
measures contained within the Mitigation Method Statement - Great Crested Newt

prepared by Soltys Brewster Ecology (dated 28 October 2016).

Reason: In the interests of biodiversity.

6 31 P/19/810/FUL
A Panel Site Visit was undertaken on Wednesday 26 February, 2020.

The Local Ward Member (ClIr. A. Hussain) and agent for the development (Jacob Lawrence of
Geraint John Planning Ltd) attended the panel site visit.

In addition, the penultimate sentence of the paragraph below Figure 5 on page 37 of the agenda
should refer to appointments not commencing until 9am on Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays and
Mondays and 10am on Sundays and Bank Holidays, in line with condition 3 and not “until 10am”
as stated in the report.

JONATHAN PARSONS
GROUP MANAGER — PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
27 FEBRUARY 2020

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

REFERENCE: P/19/911/RLX

APPLICANT: Ward Jones (Bridgend) Ltd.
c/o John Matthews Development Consultant,
47 Anglesey House, Anglesey Way, Nottage CF36 3QP

LOCATION: Land at Moor Lane, Porthcaw!l CF36 3EJ

PROPOSAL.: Vary conditions 1, 3, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 18, 19, 23 and 24 of
P/19/115/RLX to facilitate an increased provision of timber chalet
accommodation units from 56 to 80

RECEIVED: 06 December 2019

APPLICATION/SITE DESCRIPTION

The application seeks to vary conditions 1, 3, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 18, 19, 23 and 24 of
P/19/115/RLX to allow an increase in the number of timber chalet accommodation units on the
site from 56 to 80. The original consent (P/16/497/FUL) related to the change of use of the
land for the provision of high quality self-catering mobile wooden chalet tourist accommodation
units and supporting facilities and that application was reported to DC Committee in April
2017.

The relevant conditions and proposed changes are as follows:

1. The consent hereby approved shall be limited to the siting of 56 timber chalet
accommodation units, which shall be mobile, not fixed to the ground laid out in
accordance with the 1:1250 scale Site Plan received on 11th October, 2018 and
submitted as part of the discharge of condition application P/18/827/DOC and in
accordance with the 1:100 scale plans of the 3 bed, 2 bed and smaller 2 bed timber
units received on 11th October, 2018 and submitted as part of the discharge of
condition application P/18/827/DOC together with the 1:200 scale plan of the Service
Centre Building received on 11th October, 2018 and submitted as part of the discharge
of condition application P/18/827/DOC.

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The consent hereby approved shall be limited to the siting of 80 timber chalet
accommodation units, which shall be mobile, not fixed to the ground laid out in
accordance with the revised 1:1250 scale Site Plan received on 61" December 2019 and
in accordance with the 1:100 scale plans of the 3 bed, 2 bed and smaller 2 bed timber
units received on 11th October, 2018 and submitted as part of the discharge of
condition application P/18/827/DOC together with the 1:200 scale plan of the Service
Centre Building received on 11th October, 2018 and submitted as part of the discharge
of condition application P/18/827/DOC.

3. This consent permits the year round occupation of the timber chalet units but no unit
shall be occupied as a person's or persons' place of residence nor shall any unit be
occupied by the same person or persons for a period exceeding 42 days between April
and September (inclusive) and 42 days between October and March (inclusive).

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-
This consent permits the year round occupation of the timber chalet units but no unit
shall be occupied as a person's or persons' place of residence nor shall any unit be

occupied by the same person or persons for a period exceeding 28 days within any 12
month period.

Page 15



8. No development shall take place, including any works of site clearance, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved Method Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the site clearance and construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

l. the routeing of HGV construction traffic to/from the site in order to avoid the
village of Nottage

I. specify the type and number of vehicles used during construction;

II. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

V. loading and unloading of plant and materials;

V. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;

VI. details of how and where the assembly of the wooden chalets will take place
and the programming of such works;

VII.  wheel washing facilities;

VIIl.  measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;

IX. the provision of temporary traffic and pedestrian management along the agreed

construction route
The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall strictly accord with the Construction Method Statement as
approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15 February 2019.

9. No development shall commence until a scheme for the provision of a direct pedestrian
access to the adjacent public right of way on the eastern site boundary has been
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the
approved development being brought into beneficial use and the access to the public
right of way shall thereafter be maintained in perpetuity.

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the scheme for the
provision of a direct pedestrian access to the adjacent public right of way on the eastern
site boundary as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15% February, 2019
prior to the approved development being brought into beneficial use and the access to
the public right of way shall thereafter be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

10. No development shall commence until a scheme for the provision of traffic signs
warning of the presence of pedestrians along Moor Lane to its termination at the A4229
and Pyle Road together with any necessary illumination has been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the development being
brought into beneficial use and shall thereafter be maintained in perpetuity

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the scheme for the
provision of traffic signs warning of pedestrians along Moor Lane to its termination at
the A4229 and Pyle Road together with necessary illumination as approved under App.
No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15" February, 2019 prior to the development being brought
into beneficial use and shall thereafter be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

Page 16



11. No development shall commence until a scheme for the provision of stepping off/refuge
areas along Moor Lane from the site access to the A4229 and Pyle Road has been
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The stepping
off/refuge areas shall thereafter be provided in accordance with the agreed scheme
prior to the approved development being brought into beneficial use and shall thereafter
be maintained in perpetuity

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the scheme for the
provision of stepping off/refuge areas along Moor Lane from the site access to the
A4229 and Pyle Road as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15t February,
2019 prior to the approved development being brought into beneficial use and shall
thereafter be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

12. No development shall commence until a scheme for the provision of tourist direction
signs directing guests to the site has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in accordance
with the approved details prior to the approved development being brought into
beneficial use.

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the scheme for the
provision of tourist direction signs directing guests to the site as approved under App.
No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15" February, 2019 prior to the development being brought
into beneficial use and shall thereafter be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

13. No development shall commence until a Traffic & Delivery Management Plan for the
site has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All
guest arrivals and departures and servicing and delivery vehicles movements to the site
shall be made in accordance with the agreed Traffic & Delivery Plan once the
development is brought into beneficial use.

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the Traffic and
Delivery Management Plan as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15
February, 2019. All guest arrivals and departures and servicing and delivery vehicle
movements to the site shall be made in accordance with the agreed Traffic and Delivery
Management Plan once the development is brought into beneficial use.

14. No development shall commence until a scheme for the provision of off street parking
spaces has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The parking areas shall be completed in permanent materials with the individual spaces
clearly demarcated in permanent materials in accordance with the approved layout prior
to the development being brought into beneficial use and shall be retained for parking
purposes in perpetuity

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-
The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the scheme for the

provision of off-street parking spaces as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated
15% February, 2019. The parking areas shall be completed in permanent materials with

Page 17



the individual spaces clearly demarcated in permanent materials in accordance with the
approved layout prior to the development being brought into beneficial use and shall be
retained for parking purposes in perpetuity.

18. No development shall take place until details of the siting and design of the wooden
chalets within each of the plots and plans of the siting, design and layout of the
proposed Service Centre Block (to include a reception/office, a shop, a cycle hire facility
and storage areas), including samples or detailed specifications of the materials to be
used in the construction of the external surfaces of the chalets and buildings hereby
permitted and for any replacement units, have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the agreed details

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the details of the siting
and design of the wooden chalets within each of the plots as shown on the 1:1250
scale Revised Site Plan dated 02/07/2019, and, the plans of the siting, design and
layout of the proposed Service Centre Block (to include a reception/office, a shop, a
cycle hire facility and storage areas), and for any replacement units as approved under
App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15t February, 2019. Development shall be carried out
in accordance with the agreed details.

19. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority a landscaping scheme which shall include, proposals
for surface treatment, indications of all existing trees and hedgerows on land, and
details of any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development. The agreed landscaping works shall be carried out prior to the
occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with a programme agreed
with the Local Planning Authority prior to any development commencing on site.

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the landscaping details
as shown on Revised Site Plan — Proposed Tree Planting of Central Green & Proposed
Tree Planting of Central Green — Table, and, the Landscaping Proposals plan as
approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15" February, 2019. The agreed
landscaping works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development in accordance with a programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority
prior to the development commencing on site.

23. No site clearance shall take place until further information has been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in respect of:-

*Appropriate pollution prevention to Moor Lane Pond SINC;

*Bat sensitive light design;

*Method Statement for vegetation clearance in respect of birds, reptiles and
amphibians;

*Eradication strategy for Japanese Knotweed

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

Site clearance works shall be taken in full accordance with:
e The details relating to lighting design, method for vegetation clearance,
knotweed protocol as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15"
February, 2019.

Page 18



24,

e The pollution prevention measures which comprise a 5m wide buffer zone from
the SINC along with a 2m x 1m clay bund as approved under App. No.
P/19/307/DOC dated 315t May, 2019.

No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the comprehensive and
integrated drainage of the site showing how foul sewage, road, roof and yard water will
be dealt with, including future maintenance requirements has been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage system shall be
implemented in accordance with the agreed scheme prior to the development being
brought into beneficial use

The applicant seeks the following amendment to the condition:-

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the Drainage Strategy
Plan as approved under App. No. P/19/307/DOC.

The following conditions are retained as per the latest consent (P/19/115/RLX):

2.

15.

16.

The timber chalet units shall be used for holiday accommodation only and for no other
purpose including any other purpose in Class C3 of the Schedule to the Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order, 1987 or in any provision equivalent to that Class
in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification.

An up to date register shall be kept at the holiday accommodation hereby permitted
from first beneficial occupation of the holiday accommodation and the register shall be
made available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority upon request. The
register shall contain details of the names of all of the occupiers of the accommodation,
their main home addresses and their dates of arrival at and departure from the
accommodation.

Within one month of any change of operator/ownership of either the site (or any part
thereof) or of any individual chalet unit on the site, the Local Planning Authority shall be
advised by the operator or the owners of any individual chalet in writing of such change
including the name and home address of the new owner.

A statutory declaration shall be submitted by each or any owner of the site (or any part
thereof) or of any individual unit on the site to the Local Planning Authority not later than
31st January annually in each successive year stating that the chalets have not been
used for permanent residential accommodation.

The proposed convenience shop within the reception block shall be completed and
open to guests prior to the first occupation of the site and shall be open each day the
site is open to guests.

The proposed means of access shall be no less than 5.5m wide laid out with 6.0 metre
radius kerbing on both sides of the entrance constructed and retained in permanent
materials as approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority with vision splays of
2.4m x 43m in both directions and surfaced in permanent materials for a distance of no
less than 10m before the development is brought into beneficial use and shall
thereafter be retained as such in perpetuity.

No structure, erection or planting exceeding 0.9 metres in height above adjacent
carriageway level shall be placed within the required vision splay areas at any time.

Page 19



17.

20.

21.

22.

25.

Any entrance barrier/gates shall be set back not less than 12 metres from the nearside
edge of carriageway.

A landscape management plan, including long term design objectives, management
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas shall be submitted
to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any part of the
development. The landscape management plan shall be carried out as agreed.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development or in accordance with a programme agreed with the Local Planning
Authority prior to any development commencing on site.

All site clearance works shall be undertaken in accordance with the methods and
measures contained within the Mitigation Method Statement - Great Crested Newt
prepared by Soltys Brewster Ecology (dated 28 October 2016).

Prior to the diversion of Footpath 12 along the eastern and northern boundaries of the
site, a scheme for a catch ball fence a minimum of 3m in height shall be submitted to
and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The agreed fencing shall
thereafter be implemented prior to the diverted footpath being opened to public use and
shall be retained and regularly maintained in perpetuity.

lllustration 1: Aerial Photograph of the Application Site

Members will recall that the application site is a roughly rectangular area of land on the
northern side of Moor Lane adjoining the north eastern and eastern boundaries of the former
Gas Holder Compound.

The site extends to approximately 3.8 hectares of land, which is currently rough grassland.
Footpath 12 runs diagonally from a point in the south eastern corner of the site, adjacent to
the access point onto Moor Lane, to the north eastern corner before continuing in a north
easterly direction until it meets the A4229. The Grove Golf Course adjoins the northern and
eastern site boundaries with agricultural land laying to the south.

Page 20



lllustration 2: Approved Plan under P/16/497/FUL

lllustration 3: Approved Plan under P/18/827/DOC

Page 21



lllustration 4: Proposed Layout Plan

RELEVANT HISTORY
6782/350/2280/71 - Light industrial purposes & Council Yard - Approved with conds July, 1972

75/400 - Industrial Estate - Deemed Consent - October, 1975

75/1301 - Transport Depot - Deemed Consent - January, 1976

99/628 - 2 Light Industrial Units - Approved with conditions - 14/03/00

P/01/221/OUT - 10 residential units - Refused - 15/05/01 (Dismissed on Appeal 11/12/01)
P/02/186/FUL - Warehouse with integral office - Approved with conditions - September, 2002
P/07/896/FUL - Healthcare complex - Refused - 21/12/07

P/07/897/FUL - Office/Commercial Dev't (5 offices & 8 commercial units) — Refused - 21/12/07
P/08/116 - B2/B8 Unit with access road - Refused - 13/03/09

P/12/450/FUL - Fencing & entrance gates to site boundary & diversion of Footpath 12 -
Approved with conditions - 19/10/12

P/13/573/FUL - Landscape Business (turf, soil & stone sorting & distribution) with 2 agricultural
type sheds - Refused - 22/10/13

P/16/497/FUL - Change of use of land for the provision of high quality self-catering mobile

wooden chalets, tourist accommodation & supporting facilities — Approved with conditions -
13/04/17

Page 22



P/17/554/RLX - Variation of condition 2 of P/16/497/FUL relating to occupancy of chalets —
Approved with conditions — 16/03/18

P/18/827/DOC - Approval of details for conditions 8-15, 19, 20, 24, 25 and 26 of
P/17/554/RLX — Details Agreed — 18/02/20

P/18/954/RLX - Vary condition 1 of P/17/554/RLX to amend the height of the chalet units from
3.05m to 5m — Approved with conditions — 16/03/18

P/19/307/DOC - Approval of details for conditions 23 & 24 of P/19/115/RLX — Details Agreed -
31/05/19

P/19/115/RLX - Removal of condition 12 and variation of condition 25 of P/18/954/RLX —
Approved with conditions — 02/05/19

PUBLICITY

This application has been advertised through the neighbour notifications and via a notice
erected on site. The period allowed for response to consultations / publicity expired on 6
January 2020.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Highways Officer — The applicant has provided a Transport Statement to accompany this
application which seeks to quantify the vehicle movements resulting from the uplift in units. It
should be noted that the trip generation patterns and volumes of traffic for a rental holiday
chalet are significantly different to a privately owned chalet that would attract longer stays.
The revised transport statement quantifies the traffic generated by an uplift in chalet numbers
from 56 to 80. In addition the applicant has removed the previous request for a certain
number of units to be privately owned and therefore all 80 chalets will be holiday lets with a
restriction on length of stay. The new total of 80 chalets operating solely as holiday chalets
will generate between 195 and 208 vehicle trips per day. Based on the worst-case baseline
traffic flow on Moor Lane calculated by the Highway Authority of 769 two-way movements, the
inclusion of the traffic generation from 80 units would equate to total two-way flows of 977
vehicles. This does not exceed the quiet lane threshold of 1,000 vehicle movements along
Moor Lane.

It should be noted that the applicant’s Transport Consultant calculated the baseline traffic
movements along Moor Lane as 449 vehicle movements per day. However, the Highway
Authority has sought to calculate the absolute worst case scenario and take a robust position
whereby all traffic already using Moor Lane is travelling in the same direction and along the
same section of Moor Lane in the peak hour. In addition, within that calculation it assumes
that all other caravan and campsites which use Moor Lane are at full occupation on a bank
holiday weekend.

Therefore, even with the above robust background traffic calculation and the traffic generated
by the development, Moor Lane remains within the quiet lane threshold and it is considered
not to materially affect the peak traffic hours of the local highway network.

It is noted that a number of conditions associated with the previous consent have now been
discharged, therefore | would request that the LPA re-words those conditions to ensure the
scheme is constructed as per the agreed plans. All other highway related conditions would
remain the same and should be applied to this consent. | would advise that the observations
of the Highway Authority are: -

No objection subject to of the imposition of all previous highway related conditions imposed on
any previous consent.

Page 23



Dwr Cymru/Welsh Water — No objection.

Land Drainage — Originally, the Land Drainage Officer was unable to agree to the suggested
working for drainage condition and required a revised drainage strategy report to be provided
and reviewed prior to agreeing to the addition of a new drainage condition. Additional details
and calculations have been submitted and the Land Drainage Officer considers that the
proposals are acceptable subject to a condition requiring the revised details to be submitted to
and approved in writing prior to the commencement of development on site.

Porthcawl Town Council — Objection: Maintain original objection to conditions 1 and 9.
Over-intensification. No works to commence until conditions 1 and 9 have been revised.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
Councillor Norah Clarke — “I object most strongly to increasing the number of chalet units
from 56 to 80 for the following reasons:-

1. In 2001 an application for 10 dwellings was refused by the Local Planning Authority on
this particular site which then went to appeal & was refused by the inspector. One of
the reasons for refusal by the inspector was the volume of traffic that would be
generated by this number of dwellings. During the last 18 years volumes of traffic &
reliance on the motor car has substantially increased.

2. Moor Lane is just that a lane. It's an unclassified road which is 1.6km in length between
the classified roads known as West Road (to the west) and the A4229 Pyle Road (to
the east) & is confined to a single width track along extensive sections of its length & is
considered to be substandard in nature due to its constrained & narrow width (ranging
between 3m & 5m) lack of segregated pedestrian footways, tortuous alignment,
substandard forward visibility at numerous locations, national speed limit of 60mph &
lack of adequate headroom clearance (limited to 9'6” or 2.89m) under the nearby rall
bridge (cuckoo bridge) which is a listed structure & has restricted width.

3. Moor Lane is predominately used by walkers, dog walkers, horse riders, cyclists,
caravans & vehicles with no footpaths.

4. Moor Lane has been supported, promoted & sponsored by Bridgend County Borough
Council for the Nottage Circular Walk & Nottage & Sker Point Circular Walk.

5. The site lies in a remote countryside location which is not on a public bus route & will
lead to substantial reliance on the private motor vehicle.

Taking into account all of the above | strongly object to this application on the grounds that an
increase in the number of chalet units from 56 to 80 will inevitably add to the volume of traffic
(i.e. private motor vehicles & delivery vehicles) along Moor Lane to & from the site which will
be detrimental to road safety.

I would request a full site visit to the location also that the members of DC focus on the access
route to the site i.e. Moor Lane along its length from all routes.

Also, if this application is given approval by the planning department | would wish to address
DC committee.”

Porthcawl Civic Trust Society — Strongly object — This would increase the potential of 80
cars plus delivery vehicles accessing an egressing the site. Moor Lane is predominantly a
single track lane with passing places without a pavement used by cars, caravans, walkers,
cyclists and horse riders.

The addition of 80 chalets plus a shop will result in an increase in vehicular movements along

the lane which in this Society’s opinion will be detrimental to highway safety. Moor Lane is
subject to the national speed limit.

Page 24



The Traffic Management Plan suggested is totally impractical as merely erecting a sign for
vehicles exiting the site to “please turn right” is not enforceable. If vehicles reach the site from
a south eastern approach via Cuckoo Bridge, human nature and also satellite navigation
systems will also choose the same route away from the site. The shortest and quickest route
to Porthcawl Town and the M4 is to turn left when exiting the site.

The Highways Act requires local authorities to take reasonable steps to enhance the provision
made for walkers and cyclists and to have regard to the needs of walkers and cyclists. In our
opinion if this application is granted it will lead to an increased motor vehicular activity at
unrestricted speeds along the lane which will not enhance the needs of walkers and cyclists as
it will compromise their safety.

The site is in a remote location and not accessible by a range of different transport modes
leading to a reliance on the use of private motor vehicles.

COMMENTS ON REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

It is noted that concerns have been expressed about highway/pedestrian safety along Moor
Lane, the increase in the number of chalets on this site from 56 to 80 and the subsequent
increase in traffic along Moor Lane.

These concerns are addressed in the Appraisal Section of this report, however, it should be
noted that the potential for the approved tourist chalets being sold to private investors and
becoming second homes/longer term holiday accommodation has been removed, the ancillary
facilities (shop etc.) have not increased in size or extent despite the increase in the number of
units, the shorter term stays will result in a reduced number of vehicular movements to and
from the site compared to the consented scheme and pedestrian refuges have been secured
along Moor Lane under previous consents.

RELEVANT POLICIES
Members will recall that in determining the original planning application (P/16/497/FUL), due
regard was had to:-

National Policy

Planning Policy Wales (Paragraph 4.6.4) states that "The Countryside is a dynamic and multi-
purpose resource. In line with sustainability principles, it must be conserved and, where
possible, enhanced for the sale of tis ecological, geological, physiographic, historical,
archaeological and agricultural value and for its landscape and natural resources, balancing
the need to conserve these attributes against economic, social and recreational needs of local
communities and visitors."

In addition, paragraph 11.3.1 states that "In determining planning applications for tourism
developments, local planning authorities need to consider the impact of proposals on the
environment and local community. They may seek to reduce the impact of development using
arrangements for traffic and visitor management.”

Since then, a new version of Planning Policy Wales has been adopted (PPW 10 December
2018) and paragraph 3.34 repeats the same advice in terms of the protection of the
countryside.

Local Policy
The site is located outside of any settlement boundary as defined by Policy PLA1 of the

Bridgend Local Development Plan (LDP) and is, therefore, located in the countryside where
Policy ENV1 ensures that development is strictly controlled. ENV1 states that development
may be acceptable where it is necessary for:-

Page 25



Agriculture and/or forestry purposes;

The winning and working or minerals;

Appropriate rural enterprises where a countryside location is necessary for the
development;

The implementation of an appropriate rural enterprise/farm diversification project;

Land reclamation purposes;

Transportation and/or utilities infrastructure;

The suitable conversion of, and limited extensions to, existing structurally sound rural
buildings, where the development is modest in scale and clearly sub-ordinate to the
original structure;

The direct replacement of an existing dwelling;

Outdoor recreational and sporting activities; or

0. The provision of gypsy traveller accommodation.

wn R

No ok

B ©

Where development is acceptable in principle, it should, where possible, utilise existing
buildings and previously developed land and/or have an appropriate scale, form and detail for
its context.

Having regard to national policy and the criteria set out above and the fact that principle of
such a development has been established through the previous consent, the scheme can be
considered as an appropriate rural enterprise in accord with criterion 3 of Policy ENV1.

Policy SP11 of the LDP also states that tourism development will be promoted at the
strategically important resort of Porthcawl. Whilst the site is located approximately 300m
outside the settlement boundary of Porthcawl, the town centre is located approximately 1.3
miles to the south providing adequate services and facilities for holiday makers.

Policy REG12 of the LDP states that new tourist facilities in the countryside will only be
permitted where the activity is compatible with and complimentary to the countryside, the
development is part of a rural enterprise scheme and the proposal is considered acceptable in
principle. Due consideration was also given to the suitability of Moor Lane to serve the
proposed development.

APPRAISAL

The application is referred to Committee to consider the objections and concerns raised by the
Ward Member, Porthcawl Town Council and Porthcawl Civic Trust Society and the call-in by
the Local Ward Member in respect of the extent and number of chalets on this site and the
subsequent impact on the adjoining highway(s).

This application seeks to vary a number of conditions attached to the most recent application
and consent (P/19/115/RLX).

Since the original consent (P/16/497/FUL) for the change of use of the land for the provision of
56 high quality self-catering mobile wooden chalet tourist accommodation units and supporting
facilities, the applicant(s) relaxed/removed various conditions relating to the occupancy of the
chalets (P/17/554/RLX), the height of the chalet units (P/18/954/RLX) and the provision of a
pedestrian refuge on the A4229 to the north (following the results of a Safety Audit) and the
drainage of the site due to the lack of a public sewerage system in the vicinity of the site
(P/19/115/RLX).

This application seeks to reverse the scope to sell these chalets to private investors by

ensuring that they are rented out as holiday lets only (as per the original consent) and to
restrict the length of stay to 28 days in any 12 month period (as per the original consent) but to

Page 26



increase the number of units on the site from 56 to a maximum of 80 in order to ensure the
viability of the development.

It has been clarified that the chalets will not be available for purchase by individuals and they
will all remain in the site operator's ownership for letting as part of the business model for the
site. The site operator will retain full control and responsibility for the registration of all holiday
occupier visits.

On the basis of a Transport Assessment submitted with the original application, it was
accepted that Moor Lane would constitute a "Quiet Lane" (not exceed 1000 per day) suitable
for shared use by vehicles, pedestrians, cyclists and equestrians and therefore that it would be
suitable to serve the development. This was on the basis that the total number of vehicle
movements along Moor Lane including the holiday chalet site was calculated to be 909 using
the originally supplied TRICS data. This figure was reached by agreeing that the proposed
holiday chalet site would generate 140 vehicle trips per day in addition to the existing
background traffic already using Moor Lane.

For the previous application to vary the length of occupancy of these units (P/17/554/RLX) a
further TRICS analysis in which the whole site was unrestricted and privately owned was
sought. The data was required to obtain a "worse case" scenario using vehicle movements
from the busiest holiday month (August) and on a weekend. This would enable calculation of
the potential increase in vehicle movements as a result of an unrestricted site. On the basis of
that data, a trip rate of 3.441 trips per day per chalet was calculated which multiplied by the
number of chalets (56) resulted in 193 vehicle movements per day potentially emanating from
an unrestricted Moor Lane site.

When combined with the existing background traffic already using Moor Lane, a total of 962
vehicles per day could be generated on that basis. The overall total therefore remained within
the 1000 vehicle threshold and would not so significantly increase movements as to be
detrimental to highway safety.

The current application to vary the wording of the conditions has once again been
accompanied by additional information to supplement the original Transport Assessment in
order to quantify whether the number of vehicle movements expected from the holiday chalets
would change due to the proposed increase in numbers and the proposal to revert back to
100% short term holiday lets.

The trip generation patterns and volumes of traffic for a rental holiday chalet are significantly
different when compared to a privately owned chalet that would attract longer stays.

The traffic generated by chalets used as holiday lets is considerably less than chalets which
are privately owned and occupied for longer durations. The Technical Note - Transport
submitted with the application (and corroborated by the Highways Officer) states that short
term holiday lets generate 1.3 trips per unit per day, as opposed to 3.441 trips per unit per day
for a site with the potential for longer term stays as previously approved (42 days in any six
month period).

Therefore, with a new total of 80 chalets operating solely as shorter term holiday chalets will
generate between 195 and 208 vehicle trips per day compared to 193 trips per day for 56
units with longer periods of stay.

Based on the worst-case baseline traffic flow on Moor Lane, calculated by the Highway
Authority, of 769 two-way movements, the inclusion of the traffic generation from 80 units
would equate to total two-way flows of 977 vehicles. This, therefore, still does not exceed the
quiet lane threshold of 1,000 vehicle movements along Moor Lane and compares favourably

Page 27



with the 962 vehicles per day generated by 56 units (and background traffic) with longer
periods of stay as previously approved.

For clarity, it should be noted that the applicant’s Transport Consultant calculated the baseline
traffic movements along Moor Lane as 449 vehicle movements per day, however, the Highway
Authority has sought to calculate the absolute worst case scenario and take a robust position
whereby all traffic already using Moor Lane is travelling in the same direction and along the
same section of Moor Lane in the peak hour.

In addition, that calculation assumes that all other caravan and campsites which use Moor
Lane are at full occupation on a bank holiday weekend.

However, even with the above robust background traffic calculation, the traffic generated by
this development at Moor Lane remains within the quiet lane threshold and it is considered
that it would not materially affect the peak traffic hours of the local highway network.

The Draft Framework Travel Management Plan submitted with the application includes
sustainable transport initiatives and information to be provided to holiday makers and
sustainable travel will be encouraged through the provision of travel information within a
residents welcome pack. The travel information will demonstrate walking and cycling routes,
show key local facilities and provide details of public transport. In addition, the site will provide
a cycle hire facility to encourage cycling and an on-site shop to reduce the need to travel off-
site. These measures will seek to minimise the level of vehicle trips on the network, wherever
possible.

All other highway related conditions remain the same and will be re-applied to this consent
and the Highways Officer has no objection to the proposals.

Given the unsustainable nature of the site with regard to access to local services, schools,
health services and the wider transport network, any unfettered residential use would be
unacceptable and maintaining the requirement for occupation to be for holiday purposes only
is considered necessary from a highway safety viewpoint.

In planning terms, there was also a concern that relaxing the occupancy condition could result
in longer stays at the site and would not provide the necessary high turnover of occupancy
that is required to contribute to the local economy and meet the needs of the serviced
accommodation demands. Now that the scheme has reverted back to 100% holiday lets for
short term occupancy (maximum of 28 days in any 12 month period), it is considered that the
benefits to the local economy will be maximised and any concerns that the site could
eventually evolve into a 'second home' park have been addressed.

In terms of ecology/biodiversity, the original condition has been discharged recently (condition
23 under P/18/827/DOC) and the development will be conditioned so that it adheres to the
details as approved.

CONCLUSION

The amended conditions are considered to be acceptable in providing a purely tourism related
development and are sufficient to control the maximum number of units on the site and the
nature of the occupancy of the units on the site. In essence, whilst the number chalets on the
site has increased from 56 to 80, the restriction of occupancy to 28 days per 12 month period
will ensure that the nature of the use of the site will be tourism related and the subsequent
number of trips generated from each chalet will be less than previously consented.

More specifically, the restricted occupancy does not give rise to any issues relating to highway
safety, drainage or biodiversity.

Page 28



RECOMMENDATION
(RO2) That permission be GRANTED subject to the following condition(s):-

1. The consent hereby approved shall be limited to the siting of 80 timber chalet
accommodation units, which shall be mobile, not fixed to the ground laid out in
accordance with the revised 1:1250 scale Site Plan received on 6th December 2019 and
in accordance with the 1:100 scale plans of the 3 bed, 2 bed and smaller 2 bed timber
units received on 11th October, 2018 and submitted as part of the discharge of
condition application P/18/827/DOC together with the 1:200 scale plan of the Service
Centre Building received on 11th October, 2018 and submitted as part of the discharge
of condition application P/18/827/DOC.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as to the extent of the development permitted and
to protect the safety and free flow of traffic on the surrounding highway network

2. The timber chalet units shall be used for holiday accommodation only and for no other
purpose (including any other purpose in Class C3 of the Schedule to the Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 or in any provision equivalent to that Class
in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without
modification).

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority retains effective control over the use of
the chalets and to prevent the holiday accommodation being used as permanent
residential accommodation.

3.  This consent permits the year round occupation of the timber chalet units but no unit
shall be occupied as a person's or persons' place of residence nor shall any unit be
occupied by the same person or persons for a period exceeding 28 days within any 12
month period.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority retains effective control over the use of
the chalets and to prevent the holiday accommodation being used as permanent
residential accommodation.

4.  An up to date register shall be kept at the holiday accommodation hereby permitted
from first beneficial occupation of the holiday accommodation and the register shall be
made available for inspection by the Local Planning Authority upon request. The
register shall contain details of the names of all of the occupiers of the accommodation,
their main home addresses and their dates of arrival at and departure from the
accommodation.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority retains effective control over the use of
the chalets and to prevent the holiday accommodation being used as permanent
residential accommodation.

5.  Within one month of any change of operator/ownership of the site, the Local Planning
Authority shall be advised by the operator in writing of such a change including the
name and home address of the new owner.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority retains effective control over the use of
the chalets and to prevent the holiday accommodation being used as permanent
residential accommodation.

6. A statutory declaration shall be submitted by each or any owner of the site (or any part
thereof) to the Local Planning Authority not later than 31 January annually in each

Page 29



10.

11.

12.

13.

successive year stating that the timber chalets have not been used for permanent
residential accommodation.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority retains effective control over the use of
the chalets and to prevent the holiday accommodation being used as permanent
residential accommodation.

The proposed convenience shop within the reception block shall be completed and open
to guests prior to the first occupation of the site and shall be open each day the site is
open to guests.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to protect the safety and free flow of traffic

The development shall strictly accord with the Construction Method Statement as
approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February 2019.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the scheme for the provision
of a direct pedestrian access to the adjacent public right of way on the eastern site
boundary as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February, 2019 prior
to the approved development being brought into beneficial use and the access to the
public right of way shall thereafter be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the scheme for the provision
of traffic signs warning of pedestrians along Moor Lane to its termination at the A4229
and Pyle Road together with necessary illumination as approved under App. No.
P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February, 2019 prior to the development being brought into
beneficial use and the traffic warning signs shall thereafter be retained and maintained
in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the scheme for the provision
of stepping off/refuge areas along Moor Lane from the site access to the A4229 and
Pyle Road as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February, 2019 prior
to the approved development being brought into beneficial use and the stepping
off/refuge areas shall thereafter be retained and maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the scheme for the provision
of tourist direction signs directing guests to the site as approved under App. No.
P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February, 2019 prior to the development being brought into
beneficial use and the tourist direction signs shall thereafter be retained and maintained
in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the Traffic and Delivery
Management Plan as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February,
2019. All guest arrivals and departures and servicing and delivery vehicle movements
to the site shall be made in accordance with the agreed Traffic and Delivery

Page 30



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Management Plan once the development is brought into beneficial use.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the scheme for the provision
of off-street parking spaces as approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15th
February, 2019. The parking areas shall be completed in permanent materials with the
individual spaces clearly demarcated in permanent materials in accordance with the
approved layout prior to the development being brought into beneficial use and shall be
retained for parking purposes in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

The proposed means of access shall be no less than 5.5m wide laid out with 6.0 metre
radius kerbing on both sides of the entrance constructed and retained in permanent
materials as approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority with vision splays of
2.4m x 43m in both directions and surfaced in permanent materials for a distance of no
less than 10m before the development is brought into beneficial use and shall thereafter
be retained as such in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

No structure, erection or planting exceeding 0.9 metres in height above adjacent
carriageway level shall be placed within the required vision splay areas at any time.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Any entrance barrier/gates shall be set back not less than 12 metres from the nearside
edge of carriageway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

The development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the details of the siting
and design of the wooden chalets within each of the plots as shown on the 1:1250 scale
Revised Site Plan dated 02/07/2019, and, the plans of the siting, design and layout of
the proposed Service Centre Block (to include a reception/office, a shop, a cycle hire
facility and storage areas) and for any replacement units as approved under App. No.
P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February, 2019. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the agreed details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory and sympathetic form of development so as to
enhance and protect the visual amenities of the area and in the interests of highway
safety.

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the landscaping details as
shown on Revised Site Plan — Proposed Tree Planting of Central Green & Proposed
Tree Planting of Central Green — Table, and, the Landscaping Proposals plan as
approved under App. No. P/18/827/DOC dated 15th February, 2019. The agreed
landscaping works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the
development in accordance with a programme agreed with the Local Planning Authority
prior to the development commencing on site.

Reason: To maintain and improve the appearance of the area in the interests of visual
amenity, and to promote nature conservation.

Page 31



20. A Landscape Management Plan, including long term design objectives, management
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas shall be submitted to
and agreed by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any part of the
development. The Landscape Management Plan shall be carried out as agreed.

Reason: To maintain and improve the appearance of the area in the interests of visual
amenity, and to promote nature conservation.

21. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
plans under condition 1. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any
part of the development or in accordance with a programme agreed with the Local
Planning Authority prior to any development commencing on site.

Reason: To maintain and improve the appearance of the area in the interests of visual
amenity, and to promote nature conservation.

22. No site clearance shall take place until further information has been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in respect of:-
*Appropriate pollution prevention to Moor Lane Pond SINC;
*Bat sensitive light design;
*Method Statement for vegetation clearance in respect of birds, reptiles and
amphibians;
*Eradication strategy for Japanese Knotweed.

Reason: In the interests of the protection of biodiversity and Moor Lane Pond SINC

23. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the comprehensive and
integrated drainage of the site showing how foul sewage, road, roof and yard water will
be dealt with, including future maintenance requirements has been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage system shall be
implemented in accordance with the agreed scheme prior to the development being
brought into beneficial use.

Reason: To ensure that effective drainage facilities are provided for the proposed
development and that floor risk is not increased.

24. Prior to the diversion of Footpath 12 along the eastern and northern boundaries of the
site, a scheme for a catch ball fence a minimum of 3m in height shall be submitted to
and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The agreed fencing shall
thereafter be implemented prior to the diverted footpath being opened to public use and
shall be retained and regularly maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: In the interests of the safety and wellbeing of users of the diverted Public
Rights of way.

25. *THE FOLLOWING ARE ADVISORY NOTES NOT CONDITIONS *

a. The application can be recommended for approval because the development is
considered to comply with Government and Council policy and will not adversely
impact on privacy nor so significantly harms highway safety, visual amenities or
the amenities of neighbouring properties as to warrant refusal of the scheme.

b. The site owner will require a Site Licence under the Caravan and Control of
Development Act 1960.

C. Permission will be required to divert Footpath 12 Porthcawl.

Page 32



No surface water is allowed to discharge to the public highway.

No land drainage run-off will be permitted to discharge, either directly or
indirectly, into the public sewerage system.

In order to satisfy the drainage condition the following supplementary information
will be required:-
(). Details of infiltration tests to confirm the acceptability of any proposed
infiltration system;
(i).  Design calculations, storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharge from the site;
(ii).  Details of measures to prevent any surface water discharge polluting any
receiving ground water and/or surface water system;
(iv). Timetable for implementation;
(V). Maintenance and management plan for the lifetime of the development
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its
lifetime.

The Traffic and Delivery Management Plan required to address Condition 10 will
need to contain sufficient information in respect of the following:-

(). Guest arrival and departure arrangements (directions to the site and timing
of those movements;

(i). Guest arrival and departures of the adjacent Brodawel Caravan Park;

(ii).  Proposed Delivery Schedules;

(iv). Proposed Delivery Vehicle/Service Vehicles sizes;

(v). Supporting swept path diagrams; and

(vi). The need to review the plan in the event that any of the above
arrangements change or at the request of the Highway Authority.

The Developer is reminded that consent under the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 conveys no approval under the Highways Act 1980 for works to be
undertaken affecting any part of the public highway including verges and
footways and that before any such works are commenced the developer must:

i) obtain the approval of Bridgend County Borough Council as Highway
Authority to the details of any works to be undertaken affecting the public
highway;

i) indemnify the County Borough Council against any and all claims arising
from such works;

iii) give not less than one calendar month's notice in writing of the date that
the works are to be commenced to the Policy, Development and Transport Team
Leader, Bridgend County Borough Council, Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend.
Telephone No. (01656) 642541.

JONATHAN PARSONS
GROUP MANAGER PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Background Papers

None

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

REFERENCE: P/19/810/FUL

APPLICANT: Morganstone Ltd & Pennant Homes Ltd

Morganstone House, Unit 3 Llys Aur, Llanelli, SA14 8LQ
LOCATION: Housing development off All Saints Way Penyfai CF31 4BT
PROPOSAL: Siting of a temporary one storey sales suite for the marketing of the

residential development
RECEIVED: 31 October 2019
SITE INSPECTED: 8 January 2020

EOT AGREED: 2 March 2020

APPLICATION/SITE DESCRIPTION
The application seeks full planning permission for the siting of a temporary, single storey
sales suite on land off All Saints Way, Penyfai.

The sales suite is proposed to be located at the southern entrance to the site off Clos
Smyrna in order to ensure the site can be safely accessed by members of staff and the
public throughout the construction period. The exact location of the sales suite is identified
on the plan below in orange:

Figure 1 - Proposed Site Layout

The sales suite will comprise a prefabricated rectangular one storey unit measuring
approximately 7.3m x 3m to a height of 2.7m with a flat roof. An open plan layout with one
bathroom and kitchenette is proposed and the unit will be clad externally with oak effect
PVC panels. The entrance to the building will be double patio style entry doors and
windows which will be finished in anthracite UPVC. The external sides and rear of the
building will be painted white.

Page 35



Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

0%‘“.:

BRIDGEND

County Borough Councl

?s\-Y’bUI"Q’

le

Jonathan Parsons

Group Manager

PLanning & Development Services
Communities Directorate

Bridgend County Borough Council,
Civic Offices,

Angel Street,

Bridgend,

CF31 4wB

P/19/810/FUL

All Saint's Way
(Land off)
Penyfai
CF314BT

Scale: 1: 1,250

Date: 18/02/2020

©Crown Copyright and database right 2019. Ordnance Survey 100023405,
©Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata'r Goron 2019 Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100023405,

Aerial Imagery: Cities Revealed aerial photography copyright The Geolnformation Group 2011.
Copyright Getmapping plc.

Countryside Council for Wales, ©Crown Copyright and database right 2011.
Ordnance Survey 100018813,

Forestry Commission, ©Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100025498.

Daacaco
LI auC

2
J

Q)



Figure 2 - Proposed Elevations of Building

The proposed building will be used as the marketing suite for the development site and
will be a base for all on-site sales and marketing activities. It will be a temporary fixture
which will be removed once it is no longer required, however, a condition attached to the
recommendation requires the removal of the sales unit by the end of 2021 at the latest.
The applicant also proposes that the sales suite will be occupied by a trained member of
staff at all times and will operate from Thursday — Monday 10am — 5pm.

Amended plans were received on the 24 January 2020 revising the Site Layout Plan and
updating the Parking Management Plan. The revised plan now shows three off street
parking spaces located within and at the entrance to the application site which will be
exclusively used by visitors to the sales suite.

Figure 3 - Revised Site Layout

= - v " ,
at gaared 89 o gt i) L . ! [ . - -

| | fnces To BE PRovine ot
| exeusve (SETF visTTo s
To SaESs SWTE AN
SPaces, Te fe A Il
L] S2E OF LeFurnl bw

[y

Page 37



The application site is located within the settlement boundary of Penyfai as defined by
Policy PLA1 of the BLDP(2013) and lies approximately 2 miles from Bridgend. The
development is currently under construction and is surrounded by existing residential
dwellings.

RELEVANT HISTORY

P/17/1073/FUL - Residential development of 20 dwellings including 3 affordable dwellings
plus access, car parking, open space, landscaping, drainage and associated engineering
works — Approved (S106 agreement) — 24/04/2018.

P/19/703/NMA — Non material amendment to P/17/1073/FUL - amendment to the siting of
dwelling on Plot 20 — Approved — 10/12/2019.

P/19/945/RLX -Vary condition 1 of P/17/1073/FUL to refer to amended site layout plan
and external works layout plan to relocate footpath — awaiting determination.

PUBLICITY

The application was advertised on site.

Neighbouring properties were notified of the application.

The period for consultation/publicity originally expired on 5 December 2019 however,
following submission of the amended plans on 24 January 2020, a re-consultation was
undertaken which expired on 12 February 2020.

CONSULTATION RESPONSES
Newcastle Higher Community Council — raise concerns regarding the proposed
development and the impact it will have on neighbouring residential amenities.

Highways Officer — No objection subject to conditions for a parking scheme and
compliance with the approved Sales Management Plan.

Drainage Officer — No objection subject to a condition requesting a comprehensive and
integrated drainage scheme to be submitted and agreed by the LPA prior to works
commencing on site.

Welsh Water Developer Services — No objection subject to an advisory note.
Rights of Way Manager — No objection.

Head of Public Protection — as the application relates to a temporary sales building and the
operational hours have been restricted, it is unlikely that the activities involved for the
development will generate noise nuisance actionable by this department.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

Clir Altaf Hussain (Local Ward Member) — raises an objection to the proposed development
and requests that the application is referred to the Council’'s Planning Committee as he feels
that one of the newly constructed dwellings could be used as a sales suite for marketing.

4 letters of objection have been received from neighbouring properties regarding the proposed
development raising the following concerns:
e Increased noise and disturbance from visitors to the site and sales office;
e Concerns over lack of visitor parking and increased on street parking which will cause
obstruction and hazards to vehicles and pedestrians;
¢ No need for an additional building, sales office should be accommodated within one of
the properties that they are building on the site;

Page 38



e Loss of privacy to neighbouring properties.

COMMENTS ON REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

The majority of the concerns raised above have been addressed within the appraisal
section of this report however, with respect to the additional sales unit, the applicants’
agent has advised that they are unable to accommodate the proposed sales suite within a
newly built dwelling on the site due to health and safety reasons as construction of the
other dwellings will still be continuing on the site.

PLANNING POLICIES

Local Policies

The Development Plan for the area comprises the Bridgend Local Development Plan
(LDP) 2006-2021, which was formally adopted by the Council in September 2013, and
within which the following policies are of relevance:

e Strategic Policy SP2 — Design and Sustainable Place Making
e Policy PLAL — Settlement Hierarchy and Urban Management
e Policy PLA11 — Parking Standards

Supplementary Planning Guidance
SPGO02 - Householder Development
SPG17 — Parking Standards

National Planning Policy and Guidance
National planning guidance in the form of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, December
2018) (PPW) is of relevance to the determination of this application.

Technical Advice Notes:
The Welsh Government has provided additional guidance in the form of Technical Advice
Notes. The following are of relevance:

Technical Advice Note 12 — Design (2016)
Technical Advice Note 18 — Transport (2007)

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Section 3 of the Act imposes a duty on public bodies to carry out sustainable development
in accordance with sustainable development principles to act in a manner which seeks to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs (section 5).

The well-being goals identified in the Act are:

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
A globally responsible Wales

The duty has been considered in the assessment of this application. It is considered that
there would be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of wellbeing
goals/objectives as a result of the proposed development.

Page 39



APPRAISAL
The application is referred to Committee at the request of the Local Ward Member and to
enable consideration of the objections received from the local residents.

The main issues to consider in the determination of this application are the impact on the
character and appearance of the existing street scene, the impact on neighbouring
properties and impact highway safety.

Impact on the character and appearance of the existing street scene

The application site forms part of the construction site for the approved residential
dwellings and currently there are two porta cabins sited at the entrance of the site which
comprise the site office. It is proposed to position the temporary sales suite building in
front of the existing site office and along the boundary wall with Healthy Close. Whilst the
proposed design and materials of the building would not normally be acceptable, due to its
temporary nature and limited use as a sales office, the proposed sales suite is considered
acceptable and therefore accords with Policy SP2 (2) and SP2 (3) of the Bridgend Local
Development Plan (2013) and Supplementary Planning Guidance SPGO02: Householder
Development.

Figure 4 — Photograph of Location of Proposed Sales Suite Building

Impact on neighbouring properties

The proposed building is to be located within close proximity to the neighbouring
properties (1 and 2 Healthy Close and 6 Clos Smyrna). Whilst the proposed development
may have a slight adverse impact on the neighbouring properties in terms of its siting and
use, due to its temporary nature and use as a sales suite with restricted hours of
operation, it is not considered to be so significant to warrant refusal of the application.

The submitted plans of the proposed building indicate that two windows are to be inserted
into the eastern elevation of the proposed building which lie within close proximity to the
residential properties at Healthy Close. Whilst metal hoarding is currently erected around
the site which protects the privacy of the dwellings, it is considered necessary to attach a
condition to request that these windows are obscurely glazed to ensure the privacy of
these neighbours are protected in the event that the hoarding is removed from the site.

Page 40



Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed development will not have a significant
adverse impact on the residential amenities currently enjoyed by the neighbouring
properties and therefore accords with Policy SP2 (12) of the LDP 2013 and the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Guidance SPGO02: Householder Development.

Following the Highway Authority’s objection, the applicant has submitted a revised
indicative site layout which has sketched out the provision of 3 off-street parking spaces
within the curtilage of the site. These 3 spaces will provide 1 space for the sales suite
employee and 2 spaces for customers. As the sales suite will work on an appointment
basis only, it is considered that the provision of 2 spaces will be adequate to cover any
crossover of appointments.

Figure 5 — Location of Proposed 3 Off Street Parking Spaces

Notwithstanding the above, it is considered that there is the potential to provide 1 or 2
spaces above the 3 proposed which may allow some of the site workers to park within the
site. As a result a condition is required for a fully detailed scheme of parking to be
submitted. The applicant has also provided a revised sales suite management plan which
details how customers will be advised during the appointment booking process not to park
on-street but instead use the on-site parking provided. In addition, the appointments will
not commence until 10am which allows the peak network traffic to clear. Therefore it is
considered that the proposal will not result in additional traffic in peak hours to the
detriment of highway safety.

The Highway Officer also raised concerns that the sales suite conflicted with the location
of the wheel washing facility however, the site’s internal roads are now completed in a
tarmacadam surface and therefore, the requirement for a permanent location for the
wheel wash is less critical than during the muck shifting stage of construction which has
now finished. Notwithstanding the above, a wheel wash facility will remain located further
into the site to be used as and when required to ensure the highway remains free from soil
deposits. In addition the Site Manager will utilise a road sweeper during periods of
inclement weather.

Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed development is considered acceptable and

accords with Policy SP2(6) of the BLDP(2013) and the Council’'s Supplementary Planning
Guidance SPG17: Parking Standards.

Page 41



Drainage
The Council's Drainage Officer has raised no objection to the proposed development

subject to the imposition of a condition to any granted consent requiring a comprehensive
and integrated drainage scheme to be submitted and agreed prior to any works
commencing on the site, which accords with Policy SP2 (13) of the LDP.

Public Rights of Way

The Rights of Way Officer has confirmed that Footpath 29 Newcastle Higher is in close
proximity to the western boundary of the proposed development. The approximate
alignment of the footpath as it is currently shown on the Definitive Map is shown by a solid
purple line on the revised site plan as this footpath is temporarily closed to enable the
development to take place. On closer inspection of the plans submitted with the
application, it would seem that none of the works associated with the proposed
development would adversely affect the public footpath and therefore the works are
considered acceptable however, once the temporary closure finishes, the applicant will be
advised to keep the footpath clear of any materials whilst works are being carried out.

Noise

The Council’'s Public Protection Officer has assessed the application regarding the impact
of noise and disturbance on the existing residents located around the application site and
states that as the application is for a temporary sales building and the operational hours
have been restricted, it is unlikely that the activities involved for the development will
generate noise nuisance actionable under current legislation. Therefore the proposed
development accords with Policy SP2(8) of the BLDP(2013).

Biodiversity/Ecology

Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 states that ‘every
public authority must, in exercising its function, have regard, so far as is consistent with
the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity’. This
“duty to conserve biodiversity” has been replaced by a “biodiversity and resilience of
ecosystems duty” under Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 which came into
force on 21st March, 2016.

Section 6 (1) states that “a public authority must seek to maintain and enhance
biodiversity in the exercise of functions in relation to Wales, and in so doing promote the
resilience of ecosystems, so far as consistent with the proper exercise of those functions.”
Section 6(2) goes on to state that “In complying with subsection (1), a public authority
must take account of the resilience of ecosystems, in particular (a) diversity between and
within ecosystems; (b) the connections between and within ecosystems; (c) the scale of
ecosystems; (d) the condition of ecosystems (including their structure and functioning);
and, (e) the adaptability of ecosystems.

Regulation 9 of the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2010 requires Local
Planning Authorities to take account of the presence of European Protected Species at
development sites. If they are present and affected by the development proposals, the
Local Planning Authority must establish whether "the three tests" have been met, prior to
determining the application.

The three tests that must be satisfied are:

1. That the development is "in the interests of public health and public safety, or for
other imperative reasons of overriding public interest, including those of a social or
economic nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the
environment".

2. That there is "no satisfactory alternative"

Page 42



3. That the derogation is "not detrimental to the maintenance of the populations of the
species concerned at a favourable conservation status in their natural range

Given the nature of the development as a construction site, it is considered that there will
be no significant adverse residual impacts on biodiversity. Therefore, the proposal is
considered to comply with the requirements of the Habitats Regulations 1994 (as
amended), Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, guidance contained within
TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning (2009) and relevant LDP policies.

CONCLUSION

Having regard to the above and notwithstanding the objections lodged by local residents
and the Local Ward Member, it is considered that, on balance, and based on the
temporary nature of the sales suite, the application is acceptable as it will not have a
significant adverse effect on the character and appearance of the residential area or on
the amenities of existing residential properties and is not considered to have an adverse
effect on the public right of way or highway safety in and around the site.

RECOMMENDATION
(R11) That permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Site Location Plan,
Proposed Elevation Plan and Sales Suite Brochure received on 31 October 2019 and
amended Drawing No. 2209-01L — Site Layout and Sales Suite Management Plan
received on 24 January 2020.

Reason: To avoid doubt and confusion as to the nature and extent of the approved
development.

2. The sales suite building hereby permitted shall be removed from the site and the land
restored to its former condition on or before 31 December 2021.

Reason: In the interests of visual and residential amenities.

3. The sales suite building hereby permitted shall operate on an appointment basis only
and shall be open to customers between the following times:

Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays and Mondays between 09:00 and 17:30; and
Sundays and Bank Holidays between 10:00 and 16:30 only.

The sales suite shall not be open to customers at any time on Tuesdays or Wednesdays.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenities.

4. No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the comprehensive and
integrated drainage of the site, showing how foul and surface water will be dealt with,
including any future maintenance requirements, has been submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage system shall thereafter be
implemented in accordance with the agreed scheme and so maintained until the sales
suite has been removed from the site.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development, to prevent overloading of the
public sewerage system and prevent pollution.

5. The windows located in the eastern elevation of the proposed sales suite building hereby
approved shall be non-opening and fitted with obscure glazing to a minimum of level 5 on

Page 43



the Pilkington of obscurity prior to the beneficial occupation of the approved sales suite
and retained for the duration of the period that the sales suite is on site.

Reason: To protect the privacy and residential amenities of the neighbouring properties
known as 1 and 2 Healthy Close.

6. No development shall commence until a detailed scheme for the provision of at least 3 off
street parking spaces has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The agreed parking area shall be completed in permanent materials with the
individual spaces clearly demarcated in permanent materials in accordance with the
approved layout prior to the development being brought into beneficial use and shall be
retained for parking purposes for the duration that the sales suite is on site.

Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety.
** THE FOLLOWING ARE ADVISORY NOTES NOT CONDITIONS:

(a) The application is recommended for approval because the development complies with
Council policy and guidelines and does not have a significantly adverse effect on the
character and appearance of the residential area or on the amenities of existing
residential properties due to its temporary nature and is not considered to have an
adverse effect on the public right of way or highway safety in and around the site.

(b) No surface water is allowed to discharge to the public highway.

(c) No land drainage run off will be permitted to discharge either directly or indirectly into
the public sewerage system.

(d) In order to satisfy the drainage condition a foul and surface water drainage layout is
required.

(e) The applicant is advised to contact Dwr Cymru Welsh Water on 0800 917 2652 to

establish the location and status of the apparatus as the development site maybe crossed
by a public sewer. Welsh water has the right of access to its apparatus at all times.

JONATHAN PARSONS
GROUP MANAGER PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Background Papers
None

Page 44



Agenda Iltem 10

REFERENCE: P/19/895/RLX

APPLICANT: Mr Hughes

c/o Boyer, Third floor, Park House, Greyfriars Road, Cardiff

CF10 3AF
LOCATION: Ocean Farm, off David Street, Blaengarw, Bridgend
PROPOSAL.: Remove condition 1 of P/16/989/RLX to enable permanent use for

dog breeding
RECEIVED: 3 December 2019

APPLICATION/SITE DESCRIPTION

Retrospective Planning permission was granted for a dog breeding operation at Ocean
Farm in 2016 under consent P/15/626/FUL. It was a temporary permission to enable the
Local Planning Authority to assess the impact of the use on the amenities of the area and
highway safety. An application to increase the number of dogs to be kept at the site was
approved in 2017. The temporary nature of the consent was however retained.

This application seeks to relax condition 1 of consent of the latter permission above, to
remove the temporary nature of the use and to establish a permanent dog breeding
operation on site. Consultant’s acting on behalf of the applicant have provided the
following comments in support of the application:

As we understand, the temporary nature of the approvals was in order for the Local
Planning Authority to assess the operation of the dog breeding kennels before being
satisfied that it does not adversely affect the privacy or visual amenities nor so significantly
harms neighbours amenities as to warrant refusal.

It is noted that during the recent Section 73 application that given the nature of the
development, it is considered that, overall there will be no significant adverse residual
impacts on biodiversity. Also that the countryside location was considered appropriate for
the use of both in terms of forming part of an existing rural enterprise but also being
distant from residential properties.

It is also considered that there have been no adverse complaints regarding the operation,
with the Council’s own Environmental Health Officer raising no previous objection.

The dog breeding use operates from a former stable building on Ocean Farm, Blaengarw.
The building which measures 9.5m x 2.4m was converted in 2015 and accommodates 13
kennels. A smaller building to the north and the adjacent yard area are also used to
accommodate and to exercise the dogs.

Access to Ocean Farm is along a hon-maintainable track, owned by the Council which

once formed part of a colliery access road. It leads from David Street and extends some
315m to the entrance of the farm.

Page 45



Jonathan Parsons

Path (um)

Collects

Path (um) |

Issues

qet-Pone,

Eu.:u-;.r. ND

Fage—4

Group Manager

PLanning & Development Services
Communities Directorate

Bridgend County Borough Council,
Civic Offices,

Angel Street,

Bridgend,

CF31 4WB

Q)

P/19/895/FUL

Ocean Farm
off David Street
Blaengarw

N
/
wW—=E)=E
[/
s

Scale: 1: 2,500

Date: 18/02/2020

©Crown Copyright and database right 2019. Ordnance Survey 100023405,
©Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddatar Goron 2019 Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans 100023405,

Aerial Imagery: Cities Revealed aerial photography copyright The Geolnformation Group 2011
Copyright Getmapping plc.

Countryside Council for Wales, ©Crown Copyright and database right 2011.
Ordnance Survey 100018813,

Forestry Commission, ©Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100025498,




Extract from OS Base Map of Application Site
RELEVANT HISTORY

P/10/102/FUL — Retrospective consent issued for sheep shed extension and hay shed
extension on 9 April 2010.

P/15/626/FUL — Permission to change the use from stables to dog kennels for commercial
dog breeding was approved on 15 March 2016. The consent was issued on a temporary
basis expiring on 31 December 2019.

P/16/988/FUL — The retention of the caravan and associated buildings was refused
planning permission on 15 March 2019.

P/16/989/RLX — Permission to vary condition 3 of P/15/626/FUL and to allow the number
of breeding dogs to be increased on site was issued on 28 April 2017.

PUBLICITY

The application has been advertised on site.

Neighbours have been notified of the receipt of the application.

The period allowed for response to consultations/publicity has expired.
CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Highway Officer: No adverse comments received.

Garw Valley Community Council: object to this application on the following grounds:

e The Community and Community Council's concerns regarding the welfare of animals
kept at the site.

e The previous decision to only grant temporary consent - there have been no changes
to the circumstances to warrant permanent consent.

Page 47



e The highway to the site is not suitable for additional traffic.

Councillor S K Dendy (Local Member): has raised concerns on a number of occasions
concerning the condition and treatment of the animals on the property. Reference has
been made to a previous ban for keeping dogs and concerns around the means of sale of
puppies currently taking place. The Local Member considers that the need for permanent
dog breeding business is unnecessary and uncertain whether all previous conditions have
been met. Concerns have also been expressed over the implementation of Lucy's Law.

Shared Regulatory Services (Environment (Enterprise & Specialist Services): Ocean
Farm Breeding Kennels currently operates under a licence for 8 dogs (7 female and 1
male) and a maximum capacity of 21 puppies at one time. The Animal Health & Welfare
Officer has received a large number of complaints regarding breeding at the site, however
whenever officers have attended both announced and unannounced, the complaints have
not been substantiated.

REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
Objections have been received from:-

1 Stable Lane - Pantygog

4 Stable Lane - Pantygog

31 David Street - Blaengarw

3 Mount Pleasant - Blaengarw

247 Erw Hir — Bridgend

125 Merthyr Mawr Road - Bridgend

Three emailed objections have also been received although no postal addresses were
provided with the communications. The following is a summary of all the objections
received:-

1. Application not in the interests of the well-being of the dogs — puppy farming
(high volume breeding) is an unacceptable practice and needs to be abolished —
concerns about the sales of puppies from site

2. Any person previously convicted of cruelty to animals should not be allowed to
keep animals — is the breeding business currently licenced?

3. Appearance of the site is unkempt — the business is out of keeping with the area
4. Animals are poorly managed on site

5. The highway serving the site is not suitable for additional traffic

COMMENTS ON REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

The main objections to this application relate to the welfare of the animals and alleged
offences for animal cruelty. These are extremely sensitive and emotive issues that often
arise on such applications. The lack of weight normally given to such objections has been
addressed in a number of appeals and in particular a case in England where thousands of
representations and several large petitions had been submitted raising moral and ethical
objection to breeding dog. The Secretary of State had regard to the fact that the Courts
had determined that moral considerations were not normally material to a Planning
decision, and he took account of the fact that other legislation existed outside the land-use
planning regime to control the breeding of animals. The breeding operation at Ocean

Page 48



Farm is fully licenced and monitored by the Animal Health & Welfare Officers of the
Shared Regulatory Services Section of this Council.

A puppy farm is an intensive form of dog breeding where animals are generally kept in
poor conditions. Whilst such operations are not condoned by the Planning system they are
controlled/enforced under other legislation.

POLICY CONTEXT

The relevant policies relating to the proposed development from the adopted Bridgend
County Borough Council Local Development Plan (LDP) (2013) are:

Strategic Policy SP2 — Design and Sustainable Place Making

Strategic Policy SP3 — Strategic Transport Planning Principles

Strategic Policy SP4 — Conservation and Enhancement of the Natural Environment
Policy ENV1 — Development in the Countryside

Policy ENV4 — Local/Regional Nature Conservation Site

Policy ENV6 — Nature Conservation

Policy ENV7 — Natural Resource Protection and Public Health

Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes (SPG):
SPG19: Biodiversity and Development

Local Development Plan Policy SP2 (Design and Sustainable Place Making) is the
overarching policy which should be considered in the assessment of all Planning
applications. It states:

All development should contribute to creating high quality, attractive, sustainable places
which enhance the community in which they are located whilst having full regard to the
natural, historic and built environment by:-

1) Complying with all relevant national policy and guidance where appropriate;

2) Having a design of the highest quality possible, whilst respecting and enhancing local
distinctiveness and landscape character;

3) Being of an appropriate scale, size and prominence;
4) Using land efficiently by:

(i) Being of a density which maximises the development potential of the land whilst
respecting that of the surrounding development; and

(i) Having a preference for development on previously developed land over
Greenfield land,;

5) Providing for an appropriate mix of land uses;

6) Having good walking, cycling, public transport and road connections within and outside
the site to ensure efficient access;

7) Minimising opportunities for crime to be generated or increased;
8) Avoiding or minimising noise, air, soil and water pollution;

9) Incorporating methods to ensure the site is free from contamination (including invasive

Page 49



species).
10) Safeguarding and enhancing biodiversity and green infrastructure;
11) Ensuring equality of access by all;

12) Ensuring that the viability and amenity of neighbouring uses and their users/occupiers
will not be adversely affected;

13) Incorporating appropriate arrangements for the disposal of foul sewage, waste and
water;

14) Make a positive contribution towards tackling the causes of, and adapting to the
impacts of Climate Change; and

15) Appropriately contributing towards local, physical, social and community infrastructure
which is affected by the development.

The supporting text to this Policy advises that Policy SP2 demands a high quality of
design incorporating equality of access in all development proposals and seeks to ensure
that new built development is sensitive to its surrounding environment.

In the determination of a Planning application, regard should also be given to the
requirements of National Planning Policy and the appropriate Technical Advice Notes.

APPRAISAL
The application is being reported to Members due to the number of objections received
from residents, the Community Council and the local Ward Member.

Section 73 (S73) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 enables an applicant to
apply to develop land without compliance with conditions attached to an extant previous
Planning permission. Under this Section a Local Planning Authority may amend or remove
conditions but may not amend any other part of the permission. A successful S73
application results in the grant of a new Planning permission and therefore the original
permission remains intact. A developer may then elect between them.

When determining a S73 application, the Local Planning Authority may impose conditions
beyond those proposed in the application, however, the conditions imposed should only
be ones which could have been imposed on the original grant. It has previously been held
that the amendments permitted should not amount to a “fundamental alteration” of the
proposal put forward in the original application

The main issues in the assessment of this application are whether relaxing condition 1 of
P/16/989/RLX and permitting a permanent dog breeding operation on site would be
compliant with the local and national policies that protect the countryside, safeguard the
amenities of residents and the wider environment and whether the access arrangements
are acceptable to serve the proposed development.

In appraising the original application it was recognised that all development schemes
should contribute to creating high quality, attractive, sustainable places which enhance the
community. The countryside which is the location of this development is offered special
protection and development should benefit the rural economy whilst maintaining or
enhancing the environment. Certain developments may be appropriate in the countryside,
provided that they will encourage rural enterprise and bring wider community benefits.
Given the location of the development, Policy ENV1 represents the starting point for the

Page 50



assessment and indicates that development may be acceptable where it is necessary for:

e Appropriate rural enterprises where a countryside location is necessary for
development;

e The suitable conversion of, and limited extension to, structurally sound rural buildings
where the development is modest in scale and clearly subordinate to the original
structure;

The Policy further states that where development is acceptable in principle in the
countryside it should where possible, utilise existing buildings and previously developed
land and/or have an appropriate scale, form and details for its context.

At a local level, this countryside location is offered further protection, forming part of the
Blaengarw North East Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC).

From a national policy perspective, PPW states that “the countryside is seen as a multi-
purpose resource that should be conserved and where possible, enhanced for the sake of
its...agricultural value and for its landscape and natural resources. A strong rural economy
is however essential to support sustainable and vibrant rural communities and whilst the
protection of the open countryside should be maintained wherever possible, the expansion
of existing businesses should be supported provided there no unacceptable impacts”.

There has always been some debate as to whether dog breeding is a rural enterprise but
it is generally accepted that because of noise from barking, kennels are more appropriate
in rural than urban locations. Given that the dog breeding business operates from existing
rural buildings and the yard of a small holding, the development has not significant effects
on its rural setting. The condition and appearance of the kennel block that houses the
breeding dogs could however be approved and this is more significant given that the
application proposes a permanent use. It is therefore considered appropriate to impose a
planning condition that requires a scheme of improvements to the external appearance of
the building and for those works to be implemented within an established timeframe.

The Planning system should maximise its contribution to achieving the well-being goals
and in particular a healthier Wales by aiming to reduce average population exposure to
noise pollution. Noise and the impact on the amenities of residents is a material Planning
consideration. Since the issue of the temporary consent for the breeding operation, the
Department is not aware of any complaints being received concerning noise. Members
should be mindful that the nearest property is more than 250m from the application site. It
is often cited in appeal cases that a breeding operation is far less likely to cause barking
as the dogs so kept are used to each other.

A further material consideration following from the keeping of dogs is the question of
smell, in particular the disposal of litter. Normally, however, smell and health problems
which arise from kennels are not sufficiently serious to warrant them being given much
weight in the Planning decision making process, particularly as other legislation may be
used to tackle any difficulties. There is no evidence before the Council that the operation
is causing any significant harm to the amenities of residents.

In granting the temporary Planning permission, the Council’'s Land Drainage Engineers
and Dwr Cymru Welsh Water did not identify any drainage issues although the Council’s
Ecologist highlighted potential pollution issues associated with the washing down of
kennels — the Nant Hir runs adjacent to the site. Kennels can produce both liquid and solid
waste. Solid waste is collected and disposed of appropriately. The wash down from
kennels is however discharged onto the permeable yard which could result in pollution to

Page 51



‘controlled waters’. A condition will be re-imposed on any consent granted that will require
the agreement of a scheme for the disposal of the ‘wash down’ from the kennel building.

Safeguarding and enhancing biodiversity and green infrastructure is a requirement of
Policy SP2 and follows the requirement of national legislation that requires a public
authority to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of functions in relation to
Wales and in so doing promote the resilience of ecosystems, so far as consistent with the
proper exercise of those functions. (Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016
refers). Section 6(2) goes on to state that “In complying with subsection (1), a public
authority must take account of the resilience of ecosystems, in particular:

(a) Diversity between and within ecosystems;

(b) The connections between and within ecosystems;

(c) The scale of ecosystems;

(d) The condition of ecosystems (including their structure and functioning); and
(e) The adaptability of ecosystems.”

Regulation 9 of the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2010 requires

Local Planning Authorities to take account of the presence of European Protected Species
at development sites. If they are present and affected by the development proposals, the
Local Planning Authority must establish whether "the three tests" have been met, prior to
determining the application. The three tests that must be satisfied are: (1) that the
development is "in the interests of public health and public safety, or for other imperative
reasons of overriding public interest, including those of a social or economic nature and
beneficial consequences of primary importance for the environment" (2) That there is "no
satisfactory alternative™; (3) That the derogation is "not detrimental to the maintenance of
the populations of the species concerned at a favourable conservation status in their
natural range".

Given the nature of the development, it is considered that, overall there will be no
significant adverse impacts on biodiversity. The impacts on the SINC are longstanding and
are not exacerbated by the development. Therefore, the proposal is considered to comply
with the requirements of the Habitats Regulations 1994 (as amended). Section 6 of the
Environment (Wales) Act 2016, guidance contained within TAN 5: Nature Conservation
and Planning (2009) and relevant LDP Policies (ENV4 (2), ENV5 & ENVG6).

Access to the site was formed as part of the colliery reclamation scheme in the 1990s and
as well as serving this registered small holding, it provides an informal recreational route
to the lakes that now form part of the restored landscape. The route is owned by the
Council and varies in width from 4-6m and is finished in compacted stone. The
Transportation and Development Control Section on the previous applications indicated
that the existing access was not suitable to cater for a significant increase in traffic without
modification. The applicant indicated that no dogs would be sold from the small holding
but from his property in Blaengarw. The nature of puppy sales is that purchasers will often
want to inspect the kennels and the breeding dogs before being purchased. The
applicant’'s agent maintains that the number of visits are limited and do not represent a
significant increase above that associated with the existing small farming enterprise.
Highway safety was one of the reasons for issuing the temporary permission and although
there is an admission that customers have called to site in breach of the condition, this
has not resulted in a reports of conflict in terms of highway safety. Subject to the re-
imposition of the condition that prevents the sale of dogs from the application site, the
access arrangements are deemed acceptable to serve a permanent dog breeding
operation on site. There is no evidence to suggest that calling customers has caused any
disturbance to residents on David Street who are closest to the site access.

Page 52



Section 3 of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 imposes a duty on
public bodies to carry out sustainable development in accordance with sustainable
development principles to act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the
present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs (Section 5). The well-being goals identified in the Act are:

A prosperous Wales

* A resilient Wales

* A healthier Wales

* A more equal Wales

* A Wales of cohesive communities

« A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
* A globally responsible Wales

The duty has been considered in the assessment of this application. It is considered that
there would be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon the achievement of wellbeing
goals/objectives as a result of the proposed development.

CONCLUSION

This application which seeks to relax condition 1 of consent P/16/989/RLX and establish a
permanent dog breeding operation is considered an acceptable form of development in
this rural location which subject to the implementation of works to improve the external
appearance of the kennel building should have no significant impact on the character of its
landscape. Biodiversity habitats will be unaffected and subject to conditions, the quality of
its natural resources, in this case, water should be safeguarded. Furthermore, the
permanent dog breeding operation should not adversely affect the living conditions and
well-being of residents or be detrimental to highway safety. The objections offered to this
application have been noted but where they relate to animal welfare can be afforded little
weight as such matters are dealt with under other legislation. There are no grounds
therefore to refuse this application.

RECOMMENDATION
(R53) That permission be GRANTED subject to the following condition(s):-

1. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the plans received on 24
September 2015 and 7 January 2016 as agreed under planning application no.
P/16/989/RLX.

Reason: To avoid doubt and confusion as to the nature and extent of the approved
development.

2. The site shall only be used for Dog Breeding with no sales of dogs/puppies taking place
at any time from the site. The total number of dogs kept on site, including puppies and
pets, shall not at any time exceed 50.

Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains effective control over the use
in the interests of the general amenities of the area and in the interests of highway safety.

3. Within one month of the date of this permission, a scheme for the effective disposal of
dog waste and details of the means of containing and disposing kennel wash-down and
surface water on site shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The agreed schemes shall be implemented within six months of the date of this
permission and retained throughout the duration of the approved use.

Reason: To prevent pollution of the adjacent watercourse.

Page 53



4. Within one month of the date of this permission, a scheme to improve the appearance
of the kennel building shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall incorporate measures to re-clad/re-render the external walls
and to replace/repair the existing roof finish. The agreed scheme of improvement works
shall be carried out within 6 months of the date of this permission.

Reason: To improve the appearance of the building in the interests of protecting the
landscape and rural character which provide the setting for this development.

* THE FOLLOWING ARE ADVISORY NOTES NOT CONDITIONS

The applicant is advised that effluent from kennels (and the in-combination effect of the
adjacent stables and its associated pollution risks) can have serious pollution implications,
also prosecutable under the Environmental Protection Act, 1990, the Groundwater
Regulations 1998 and the Water Resources Act 1991 section 85. The developer should
ensure that they comply with the law and follow pollution prevention guidelines, for
example Works and Maintenance in or near Water: PPG5 Environment Agency. There is
a Duty of Care which requires that the land owner ensures that all waste is stored and
disposed of responsibly, that it is only handled or dealt with by individuals or companies
that are authorised to deal with it and that a record is kept of all wastes received or
transferred through a system of signed Waste Transfer Notes.

The submission for condition 3 should include pollution prevention control measures to
ensure that drainage is properly designed and installed and sound waste management
and spillage control measures will be in place and are able to cope with extreme pollution
events such as storms.

Incorporating biodiversity enhancements could help contribute to the environmental
sustainability of the development and the incorporation of bat bricks, bat tiles and bat
boxes into the development would provide summer roosting opportunities for bats. The
developer's attention to wildlife and development and opportunities for enhancements
which can be found in the Biodiversity and Development Supplementary Planning
Guidance (SPG): A Green Infrastructure Approach.

JONATHAN PARSONS
GROUP MANAGER PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Background Papers
None

Page 54



Agenda Item 11
APPEALS

The following appeals have been received since my last report to Committee:

CODE NO. E/20/3244575 (1884)
APPLICATION NO. P/19/799/CAC
APPELLANT MR N CAREY

SUBJECT OF APPEAL CONSERVATION AREA CONSENT FOR THE REMOVAL OF A 1.5M
HIGH WALL
TAN Y BRYN, DINAM STREET, NANTYMOEL

PROCEDURE WRITTEN REPS
DECISION LEVEL ENFORCEMENT OFFICER
The application was refused for the following reason:
1. The demolition of a section of stone boundary wall which forms part of the intrinsic character
of this property and the Nantymoel Conservation Area does not protect, conserve, promote
and enhance this historic environment and is therefore contrary to Policies SP2 and SP5 of

the Bridgend Local Development Plan, the placemaking outcomes of Planning Policy Wales
— Edition 10 2019 and the guidance in Technical Advice Note 24 - The Historic Environment

- May 2017.
CODE NO. A/20/3245217 (1885)
APPLICATION NO. P/19/798/FUL
APPELLANT MR N CAREY

SUBJECT OF APPEAL REMOVAL OF A 1.5M HIGH WALL, CREATE PARKING AREA WITH
2M HIGH WOODEN GATES AND DROP KERB
TAN Y BRYN, DINAM STREET, NANTYMOEL

PROCEDURE WRITTEN REPS
DECISION LEVEL DELEGATED OFFICER
The application was refused for the following reason:

1. The demolition of a section of stone boundary wall which forms part of the intrinsic character
of this property and the Nantymoel Conservation Area does not protect, conserve, promote
and enhance this historic environment and is therefore contrary to Policies SP2 and SP5 of
the Bridgend Local Development Plan, the placemaking outcomes of Planning Policy Wales
— Edition 10 2019 and the guidance in Technical Advice Note 24 - The Historic Environment
- May 2017.

Page 55



CODE NO. A/20/3245529 (1886)
APPLICATION NO. P/19/590/FUL

APPELLANT G B PROPERTY COMPANY LTD

SUBJECT OF APPEAL THREE PAIRS OF 3 BED SEMI-DETACHED DWELLINGS (6
DWELLINGS IN TOTAL) WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING
LAND NORTH OF 12 BRIDGEND ROAD, PONTYCYMMER

PROCEDURE WRITTEN REPS
DECISION LEVEL DELEGATED OFFICER
The application was refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development, by reason of its location and the lack of acceptable walking,
cycling and public transport connections would result in future residents accessing existing
facilities and amenities in Pontycymmer along a section of Highway (Bridgend Road) which
suffers from a lack of safe pedestrian refuge , a narrowed carriageway, a change in vertical
and horizontal alignment, and a junction with substandard vision, resulting in pedestrian /
vehicle conflict to the detriment of highway safety. The access arrangements will result in
the future occupiers being car dependent which is contrary to Policy SP2 (6 and 14) of the
Bridgend Local Development Plan 2013, the national sustainable placemaking outcome of
facilitating accessible and healthy environments as referred to in Planning Policy Wales —
Edition 10 — December 2018 and the sustainable development principles and well-being
goals of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

2. The proposed development by virtue of the siting, scale and position of the dwellings on
this steeply sloping site and the unobstructed two-way views between habitable room
windows would result in an unacceptable loss of privacy to existing residents in Braich y
Cymmer Road and would afford an unacceptably poor standard of residential amenity to
the future occupants. The development is therefore contrary to Policy SP2 (6 and 14) of
the Bridgend Local Development Plan 2013, the national sustainable placemaking
outcome of creating and sustaining communities as referred to in Planning Policy Wales —
Edition 10 — December 2018 and the sustainable development principles and well-being
goals of the Well-being of Future Generations

3. The proposed development, by reason of the restricted nature of the site would result in an
undesirable and cramped form of development, which would afford an unacceptably poor
standard of residential amenity to future occupants, by virtue of the limited usable space,
the oppressive outlook from the dwellings and garden contrary to criteria 1, 2, 3 and 12 of
Policy SP2 of the Bridgend Local Development Plan (2013) and advice contained within
Planning Policy Wales (2016).

CODE NO. AI20/3246041 (1887)
APPLICATION NO. P/19/590/FUL
APPELLANT HAFOD HOUSING ASSOCIATION & JEHU

SUBJECT OF APPEAL ERECTION OF 41 AFFORDABLE RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS WITH
ASSOCIATED ON SITE CAR PARKING, ACCESS AND
ASSOCIATED WORKS

Page 56



LAND SOUTH OF WYNDHAM CLOSE, BRACKLA INDUSTRIAL
ESTATE, BRIDGEND

PROCEDURE WRITTEN REPS
DECISION LEVEL COMMITTEE
The application was refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development, by reason of its distance from existing facilities and services and
the lack of acceptable walking, cycling and public transport connections will result in future
residents being car dependent which is contrary to Policy SP2 (6 and 14) of the Bridgend
Local Development Plan 2013, the national sustainable placemaking outcome of facilitating
accessible and healthy environments as referred to in Planning Policy Wales — Edition 10 —
December 2018 and the sustainable development principles and well-being goals of the Well-
being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

2. The level of noise mitigation required by reason of the site’s close proximity to a road and
existing industrial uses, will result in poor levels of amenity and well-being to the future
occupiers contrary to the objective of Policy SP2 (12) of the Bridgend Local Development Plan
2013, the national sustainable placemaking outcome of creating a healthy environment as
referred to in Planning Policy Wales — Edition 10 — December 2018 and the well-being goals
of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

3. The design and layout of the proposed development does not incorporate a footway/cycleway
link along the site frontage and does not maximise accessibility by walking, cycling and public
transport and is therefore contrary to Policy SP2 (6) of the Bridgend Local Development Plan
2013, the Sustainable Transport Hierarchy of Planning required by Planning Policy Wales —
Edition 10 — December 2018 and the sustainable development principles and well-being goals
of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.

4. Inthe absence of adequate off-street parking for Plots 6, 10, 14, 15, 35 and 36, the submitted
layout will generate on-street parking which will dominate the street scene and will affect the
safe movement of pedestrians and highway users in conflict with Policies SP2 (11 and 12),
PLA11, the Council’'s Car Parking Guidelines and Paragraphs 4.1.51 and 4.1.52 of Planning
Policy Wales — Edition 10 — December 2018.

The following appeals have been decided since my last report to Committee:

CODE NO. A/19/3239599 (1876)
APPLICATION NO. P/19/476/FUL
APPELLANT MR A POURGHOLI

SUBJECT OF APPEAL CHANGE USE TO HAND CAR WASH WITH THE ERECTION OF A
FREE STANDING CANOPY AND WIDENING OF ONE DOORWAY
35 VILLAGE FARM ROAD, VILLAGE FARM IND ESTATE, PYLE

PROCEDURE WRITTEN REPS
DECISION LEVEL DELEGATED OFFICER
DECISION THE INSPECTOR APPOINTED BY THE WELSH MINISTERS

Page 57



TO DETERMINE THIS APPEAL DIRECTED THAT THE APPEAL
BE ALLOWED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS.

CODE NO.
APPLICATION NO.

APPELLANT

SUBJECT OF APPEAL

PROCEDURE

DECISION LEVEL

DECISION

C/19/3240183 (1880)
ENF/248/19/ACK

MR A POURGHOLI

CHANGE USE TO HAND CAR WASH WITH THE ERECTION OF A
FREE STANDING CANOPY AND WIDENING OF ONE DOORWAY
35 VILLAGE FARM ROAD, VILLAGE FARM IND ESTATE, PYLE
WRITTEN REPS

ENFORCEMENT NOTICE

NOT DETERMINED AS THE INSPECTOR APPOINTED BY THE

WELSH MINISTERS DIRECTED THAT THE PLANNING APPEAL
BE ALLOWED SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS.

A copy of the joint appeal decision is attached as APPENDIX A

CODE NO.
APPLICATION NO.

APPELLANT

SUBJECT OF APPEAL

PROCEDURE

DECISION LEVEL

A/19/3241246 (1882)
P/19/322/FUL

MRS C POACHER

TIMBER SELF CONTAINED HOLIDAY LET UNIT
LAND ADJACENT TO PENYLAN FARM, ABERKENFIG

WRITTEN REPS

DELEGATED OFFICER

DECISION SINCE REPORTING THIS TO COMMITTEE THE APPELLANT HAS
REQUESTED THAT THE APPEAL BE WITHDRAWN.

CODE NO. A/19/3239912 (1879)

APPLICATION NO. P/19/495/FUL

APPELLANT MR G VINE

SUBJECT OF APPEAL  CONVERSION OF EXISTING GARAGE INTO A BEAUTY SALON
(RE-SUB OF P/18/297/FUL)
14 WOODLAND AVENUE, PENCOED

PROCEDURE WRITTEN REPS

DECISION LEVEL

DECISION

Page 58

DELEGATED OFFICER

THE INSPECTOR APPOINTED BY THE WELSH MINISTERS



TO DETERMINE THIS APPEAL DIRECTED THAT THE APPEAL
BE DISMISSED.

A copy of the appeal decision is attached as APPENDIX B

RECOMMENDATION
That the report of the Group Manager Planning & Development Services be noted.

JONATHAN PARSONS
GROUP MANAGER PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Background Papers (see application reference number)

Page 59



Appendix A

| % The Planning Inspectorate

Yr Arolygiaeth Gynllunio

Penderfyniad ar yr Apél Appeal Decision

Ymweliad a safte a wnaed ar 07/01/20 Site visit made on 07/01/20

gan Clive Nield BSc(Hon), CEng, by Clive Nield BSc(Hon), CEng, MICE,
MICE, MCIWEM, C.WEM MCIWEM, C.WEM

Arolygydd a benodir gan Weinidogion Cymru an Inspector appointed by the Welsh Ministers
Dyddiad: 22.01.2020 Date: 22.01.2020

Appeal A - Ref: APP/F6915/C/19/3240183
Site address: Land at 35 Village Farm Road, Village Farm, Pyle, Bridgend, CF23
6BL

The Welsh Ministers have transferred the authority to decide this appeal to me as the
appointed Inspector.

The appeal is made under section 174 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended
by the Planning and Compensation Act 1991.

The appeal is made by Mr A Pourgholi against an enforcement notice issued by Bridgend County
Borough Council.

The enforcement notice, numbered ENF/248/19/ACK, was issued on 2 October 2019.

The breach of planning control as alleged in the notice is, without planning permission, change
of use of the said land from a workshop to a sui generis use for a hand car wash.

The requirements of the notice are to: 1. Cease the use of the land for a hand car wash; and 2.
Remove any items or machinery used in connection with the hand car wash from the land.

The period for compliance with the requirements is 28 days.

The appeal is proceeding on the grounds set out in section 174(2)(g) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended. Since the prescribed fees have not been paid and there is no
appeal on ground (a), the application for planning permission deemed to have been made under
section 177(5) of the Act as amended does not fall to be considered.

Appeal B - Ref: APP/F6915/A/19/3239599

Site address: 35 Village Farm Road, Village Farm Industrial Estate, Pyle
Bridgend, CF23 6BL

The Welsh Ministers have transferred the authority to decide this appeal to me as the
appointed Inspector.

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a
refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr Abedin Pourgholi against the decision of Bridgend County Borough
Council.

The application Ref P/19/476/FUL, dated 26 June 2019, was refused by notice dated 19
September 2019.

The development proposed is change of use to hand car wash and the erection of a free-
standing canopy and widening of one doorway.

Page 60



flowecm
Typewritten Text
Appendix A


[ Appeal Decision APP/F6915/C/19/3240183 & APP/F6915/A/19/3239599

Decision on Appeal B - Ref: APP/F6915/A/19/3239599

1.

The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for the change of use to a
hand car wash and the erection of a free-standing canopy and widening of one
doorway at 35 Village Farm Road, Village Farm Industrial Estate, Pyle, Bridgend, CF23
6BL, in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref P/19/476/FUL, dated 26 June
2019, subject to the following conditions:

1)  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved
plans: Drawings 01, 02 and 03 (the original application plans), subject to the
amended canopy position detailed on the later Drainage Plan.

Reason: To avoid any doubt as to the nature and extent of the approved
development.

2) Within 1 month of the date of this decision, details of the arrangements within
the site for the washing, drying and valeting of vehicles and for the turning of
vehicles shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved arrangements shall be implemented within 3 months of
the approval and shall thereafter be retained.

Reason: In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety.

3) Within 3 months of the date of this decision, a scheme for the comprehensive
drainage of the site, showing how foul, surface water and trade effluent
discharges will be dealt with, including future maintenance requirements, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved drainage scheme shall be implemented within 3 months of the
approval and thereafter be retained and maintained.

Reason: To ensure that effective drainage facilities are provided for the
approved development.

Decision on Appeal A - Ref: APP/F6915/C/19/3240183

2.

As I have granted planning permission above, I shall not determine this appeal against
the enforcement notice.

Procedural Matters

3.

Whilst the planning application stated the post code of the site to be CF23 6BL, the
enforcement notice referred to it as CF23 6NU. I have adopted CF23 6BL as the
correct address, along with reference to its location in Pyle.

I note that the position of the free-standing canopy is different to that specified on the
application plans, and I have considered the appeals on the basis of its actual position.

Appeal B: Appeal against Refusal of Planning Permission

5.

The main issues to be considered are the effects of the car wash on highway safety
and on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, and whether or not appropriate
drainage arrangements can be provided.

Highway Safety

The Council’s refusal refers to the creation of traffic hazards to the detriment of
highway and pedestrian safety and the free flow of traffic, including the generation of
additional on-street parking in close proximity to the appeal site. Village Farm Road is
a no-through road which extends some 600 metres beyond the appeal site and serves
a number of other industrial premises on the Village Farm Industrial Estate. The

Page 61



[ Appeal Decision APP/F6915/C/19/3240183 & APP/F6915/A/19/3239599

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

carriageway is about 7.5 metres wide and has 2 metres wide footways along both
sides.

There is no evidence that the road is heavily trafficked, and at the time of my site visit
it was only subject to occasional vehicles. Clearly, as an industrial estate road, it
serves HGV traffic. However, I do not consider that the limited number of additional
vehicles likely to visit the hand car wash would have any significant effect on traffic
levels on the estate roads or any effect on the safe and free flow of traffic.

The Council suggests that the development is likely to lead to customers queuing on
the public highway, and that may well be a possibility. However, the premises has a
wide entrance gate and space within the site to accommodate up to 9 customer
vehicles. Under the circumstances, it would take an exceptional number of customers
arriving at the same time to generate queues outside the gate, and I consider the
likelihood of this occurring to be quite low; and even if it did, such an occurrence
would be infrequent.

I am also of the view that, if limited parking on the highway did occur, its implications
for highway safety would be quite limited. The road is already used for the parking of
cars, and it seems to be normal practice for parking to overlap the footways (whether
lawful or not). I do not consider one or two additional vehicles would have any
significant effect on highway safety, including the safety of cyclists and pedestrians.

My conclusion on this issue is that the car wash development would not significantly
affect highway safety and, in this respect, would comply with development plan policy,
in particular Policy SP2 of the Bridgend Local Development Plan (2013).

Amenity of Neighbouring Premises

The Council’s third reason for refusal was that insufficient information had been
provided to determine the impact of the car wash on the amenities of neighbouring
occupiers, particularly in regard to noise and disturbance, and the Council maintains
that position even though more information has now been provided.

The noisiest piece of equipment would be a pressure washer which would be operated
for short periods of time. Other noise would be that of car doors and car engines. The
premises-either-side-of-the-appeal-site-are-small-manufacturing-units;-there-is-an
estate road and other industrial estate premises to the front, and a railway line to the
rear. There are no residential premises near to the site. In these circumstances, there
is no chance whatsoever that noise from the car wash would affect the amenity of
neighbouring premises or any others in the area.

I conclude that the car wash would comply with development plan policies, including
those specified by the Council, namely policies SP2 and ENV7 of the Bridgend Local
Development Plan.

Drainage

The Council’s final reason for refusal stated that insufficient information had been
submitted to assess the impact on drainage. However, additional information has been
provided with the appeal which indicates that the waste wash-water would be drained
from the wash-area and then passed through a silt trap before discharge to the main
sewer, though it has not been confirmed that a trade discharge consent has been
granted for this.

At the time of the application DWr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) did not object to the
proposal subject to conditions to safeguard existing customers and the environment.

Page 62



| Appeal Decision APP/F6915/C/19/3240183 & APP/F6915/A/19/3239599

16.

17.

18.

This is a fairly simple development, and I would expect acceptable drainage
arrangements to be readily achievable. My conclusion is that policy compliance would
be met by means of a suitable condition attached to the planning permission. The
Council’s suggested condition is broadly suitable and, subject to minor changes, I
consider it would overcome any deficiency in the present arrangements and the
provision of information.

Overall Conclusion

Overall, my conclusion is that the car wash development (subject to conditions) would
comply with development plan policies and that planning permission should be
granted.

The Council has also suggested a condition for the submission of details of the internal
arrangements within the site for the washing, drying and valeting of vehicles, and I
consider that to be necessary to clarify the nature and scope of the development
permitted. It has also suggested a condition concerning an internal turning area.
However, I consider that would be best included in the condition above. As the new
use has already been started, a commencement condition is unnecessary. However, I
shall apply a condition to specify the application plans in order to define the location
and scope of the permission. Finally, a condition to control traffic queuing on the road
has been suggested. However, in view of my conclusions above, I do not consider that
to be necessary.

In reaching my conclusions, I have taken into account the requirements of sections 3
and 5 of the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. I consider that this

decision is in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development principle through its
contribution towards the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objective to support people and
businesses to drive prosperity.

Appeal A: Ground (g) Appeal against Enforcement Notice

19.

As I have concluded above in favour of granting planning permission for the same
development, there is no need for me to consider the ground (g) appeal against the
enforcement notice. I shall take no further action.

Clive Nield

Inspector

Page 63



Appendix B
| % The Planning Inspectorate
" Yr Arolygiaeth Gynllunio

Penderfyniad ar yr Apél Appeal Decision

Ymweliad & safle a wnaed ar 08/01/20 Site visit made on 08/01/20

gan Vicki Hirst BA (Hons) PG Dip TP by Vicki Hirst BA (Hons) PG Dip TP MA
MA MRTPI MRTPI

Arolygydd a benodir gan Weinidogion Cymru an Inspector appointed by the Welsh Ministers
Dyddiad: 19.02.2020 Date: 19.02.2020

Appeal Ref: APP/F6915/A/19/3239912
Site address: 14 Woodland Avenue, Pencoed, Bridgend, CF35 6UP

The Welsh Ministers have transferred the authority to decide this appeal to me as the
appointed Inspector.

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a
refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr Gordon Vine against the decision of Bridgend County Borough
Council.

e The application Ref P/19/495/FUL, dated 2 July 2019 was refused by notice dated 5 September
2019.

e The development proposed is existing garage conversion to beauty salon.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Procedural Matter

2. It was evident on my site visit that the development had already taken place. I have
therefore made my determination on the basis that the appeal seeks retrospective
permission for the development described in the banner heading above.

Main Issue
3. The main issue is the effect of the proposal on highway safety.
Reasons

4. The appeal site comprises a semi-detached house with a separate former garage
served by a driveway. It is located in a residential area and within the defined
settlement boundary. The garage has been converted into a beauty salon which is
solely operated by the appellant’s wife. It is stated that no more than 4 appointments
are made each day and the salon operates between 1000 to 1700 hours Monday to
Friday and 1000 to 1400 hours on Saturdays.

5. Policy PLA6 of the adopted development plan, the Bridgend County Borough Local
Development Plan (the Local Plan), states that development that will generate a net
increase in vehicular traffic movement in Pencoed to the west of the railway line will
not be permitted. The supporting text to the policy explains that the existing highway
network in Pencoed is severely constrained by the mainline railway with no prospect of
mitigation during the Plan period. Any development that will result in a net increase in
vehicular movements will exacerbate congestion either side of the level crossing and

Page 64


flowecm_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix B


[ Appeal Decision APP/F6915/A/19/3239912

the complex over-bridge junction between the eastern end of the relief road and
Penybont Road. The Council’s evidence explains that the congestion results in long
queues through the centre of the village and associated risks to safety arising from
over taking towards on-coming traffic for those not wishing to cross the railway line.

6. The appeal site lies to the west of the railway line and within the area the subject of
policy PLA6. I have no evidence before me that the reasons for the adoption of the
policy are in dispute.

7. The appellant contends that much of the salon’s clientele are from within the local
area and are therefore likely to comprise existing traffic movements. However, it
seems to me that not all trips to the beauty salon are likely to be made in conjunction
with other existing trips. Furthermore, I am not persuaded that the location of the
salon displaces trips that would otherwise take place over the railway line.

8. I also acknowledge the proximity to sustainable forms of transport, including Pencoed
station and local bus stops and the encouragement of national policy to ensure that
development is sustainably located. However, whilst this is acknowledged, I have no
substantiated evidence before me that clients solely access the site via public
transport. Furthermore, there are likely to be vehicular movements associated with
deliveries/collection of products in relation to the business.

9. I note that the appointments are spread throughout the day and are stated to be
outside peak times. However, the policy seeks to address the traffic issues at all
times of the day. I have also taken into account the offer of a suitably worded
condition to limit the number of appointments each day, but I do not find that this
would overcome the potential for clients to travel by private vehicle or the additional
traffic associated with the running of the business.

10. Whilst the traffic associated with this small business is small, I find that it comprises a
net increase in vehicular movements. These movements increase the highway safety
risks that have been identified. In allowing this development, it would be difficult to
resist others that also result in small additional numbers of traffic movements, the
cumulative effect of which would be to cause further congestion and the associated
risks to highway safety. I note the reference to other appeals! and whilst I
acknowledge that they related to different proposals, they all involved a small net
increase in vehicular movements and reached similar conclusions with regard to the
same policy or similar ones in earlier development plans.

11. I conclude that the development results in a net increase in vehicular movements that
cause an unacceptable risk to highway safety. It is not in accord with policy PLA6 of
the Local Plan.

12. In reaching my decision, I have considered the duty to improve the economic, social,
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, in accordance with the sustainable
development principle, under section 3 of the Well-Being of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 (WBFG Act). I have taken into account the ways of working set out
at section 5 of the WBFG Act and consider that this decision is in accordance with the
sustainable development principle through its contribution towards one or more of the
Welsh Ministers well-being objectives, as required by section 8 of the WBFG Act.

1 PINS Refs: APP/F6915/A/18/3213353; APP/F6915/A/17/3166499; APP/F6915/A/2071917

Page 65



| Appeal Decision APP/F6915/A/19/3239912

13. I have taken into account all other matters raised but find none that outweigh the
harm that I have identified. For the above reasons I dismiss the appeal.

VK Hirst
INSPECTOR

Page 66



Agenda Item 12
TRAINING LOG

All training sessions are held in the Council Chamber unless otherwise stated.

Facilitator Subject Date Time
Jonathan Parsons, Group “Wellbeing & Future 9 April 2020 12.45pm
Manager Planning & Development Generations Act 2016 and

Services Planning Policy Wales 10 — A

Direction of Travel”

Recommendation:
That the report of the Corporate Director Communities be noted.

JONATHAN PARSONS
GROUP MANAGER PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Background Papers
None.

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	6 Taflen Gwelliant
	8 P/19/911/RLX - Tir Ger Lon Rhos, Porthcawl
	9 P/19/810/FUL - Datblygiad Tai Wrth Ffordd Pob Saint, Penyfai
	10 P/19/895/RLX - Fferm Cefnfor, Ger Stryd Dafydd, Blaengarw
	11 Apeliadau
	12 Rhestr Hyfforddiant

